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APPELLANT’S APPENDIX VOLUME IV
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INDEX TO APPELLANT’S APPENDIX

VOL.

DOCUMENT

DATE

BATES
NUMBERS

Appendix of Exhibits Volume 1
to Supplemental Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus

02/29/2016

PA0048-PA0254

Appendix of Exhibits Volume 2
to Supplemental Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus

02/29/2016

PA0255-PA0501

Appendix of Exhibits Volume 3
to Supplemental Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus (through
HID PA 00538)

02/29/2016

PA0502-PA0606

Appendix of Exhibits Volumes
3-4 to Supplemental Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus
(Transcript: Jury Trial Day 5)

02/29/2016

PA0607-PA0839

VI

Appendix of Exhibits Volume 4
to Supplemental Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus (from
HID PA 00765)

02/29/2016

PA0840-PA1024

Vil

Appendix of Exhibits Volume 5
to Supplemental Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus
(Transcript: Jury Trial Day 7
pgs. 1-189)

02/29/2016

PA1025-PA1220

VIl

Appendix of Exhibits Volume 5
to Supplemental Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus
(Transcript: Jury Trial Day 7
pgs. 190-259)

02/29/2016

PA1221-PA1290

Appendix of Exhibits Volume 6
to Supplemental Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus

02/29/2016

PA1291-PA1457

Appendix of Exhibits Volume 7
to Supplemental Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus

02/29/2016

PA1458-PA1649




© 00 N o o B~ O w NP

S T N N N N T S T R N e I S N R T o e =
©® ~N o OB W N P O © 0O N o UM W N P O

VOL.

DOCUMENT

DATE

BATES
NUMBERS

Xl

Appendix of Exhibits Volumes
8-9 to Supplemental Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus
(Transcript: Jury Trial Day 10
pgs. 1-218)

02/29/2016

PA1650-PA1874

Xl

Appendix of Exhibits Volumes
8-9 to Supplemental Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus
(Transcript: Jury Trial Day 10
pgs. 319-341)

02/29/2016

PA1875-PA2004

X1

Appendix of Exhibits Volumes
10-11 to Supplemental Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus
(Transcript: Jury Trial Day 11
pgs. 1-177)

02/29/2016

PA2005-PA2188

XV

Appendix of Exhibits Volumes
10-11 to Supplemental Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus
(Transcript: Jury Trial Day 11
pgs. 178-318)

02/29/2016

PA2189-PA2336

XV

Appendix of Exhibits Volumes
12-13 to Supplemental Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus
(Transcript: Jury Trial Day 12
pgs. 1-229)

02/29/2016

PA2337-PA2574

XVI

Appendix of Exhibits Volumes
12-13 to Supplemental Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus
(Transcript: Jury Trial Day 12
pgs. 230-330)

02/29/2016

PA2575-PA2683

XVII

Appendix of Exhibits Volume
14 to Supplemental Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus

02/29/2016

PA2684-PA2933

XVIII

Appendix of Exhibits Volumes
15-16 to Supplemental Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus

02/29/2016

PA2934-PA3089
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VOL. DOCUMENT DATE BATES
NUMBERS

XIX | Appendix of Exhibits Volume | 02/29/2016 | PA3090-PA3232
17 to Supplemental Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus

XX Appendix of Exhibits Volume | 02/29/2016 | PA3233-PA3462
18 to Supplemental Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus

XXI1 | Appendix of Exhibits Volumes | 02/29/2016 | PA3463-PA3703
19-20 to Supplemental Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus

XXI1 | Minute Order 08/15/2016 | PA3811

XXII | Notice of Appeal 10/03/2016 | PA3862-PA3864

XXII | Notice of Entry of Findings of | 09/19/2016 | PA3812-PA3861
Fact and Conclusions of Law
and Order

XXII | Register of Actions for District | 07/11/2017 | PA3865-PA3883
Court Case Number 08C241394

XXII | Reply to State’s Response to 07/21/2016 | PA3786-PA3798
Supplemental Petition for Writ
of Habeas Corpus

XXII | State’s Response to 05/18/2016 | PA3709-PA3785
Supplemental Petition for Writ
of Habeas Corpus

XXII | Supplement to Supplemental 03/08/2016 | PA3704-PA3708
Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus

I Supplemental Petition for Writ | 02/29/2016 | PA0001-PA0047
of Habeas Corpus

XXI | Transcript of Petition for Writ | 08/11/2016 | PA3799-PA3810

of Habeas Corpus Hearing
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| certify that | am an employee of McLetchie Shell LLC and that on this
24th day of July, 2017 the APPELLANT’S APPENDIX VOLUME IV was
filed electronically with the Clerk of the Nevada Supreme Court, and
therefore electronic service was made in accordance with the Master Service
List as follows:

STEVEN OWENS

Office of the District Attorney

200 Lewis Avenue, Third Floor

Las Vegas, NV 89155

ADAM P. LAXALT

Office of the Attorney General

100 North Carson Street

Carson City, NV 89701

| hereby further certify that the foregoing APPELLANT’S APPENDIX

VOLUME IV was served by first class U.S. mail on July 24, 2017 to the
following:
LUIS HIDALGO, JR., ID # 1038134
NORTHERN NEVADA CORRECTIONAL CENTER
1721 E. SNYDER AVE
CARSON CITY, NV 89701
Appellant
/s/ Pharan Burchfield
Employee, McLetchie Shell LLC
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MARGARET A. MCLETCHIE, Nevada Bar No. 10931
MCLETCHIE SHELL LLC

Electronically Filed

02/29/2016 12:52:15 PM

%*W

CLERK OF THE COURT

701 East Bridger Ave., Suite 520

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone: (702) 728-5300
Facsimile: (702) 425-8220

Email: maggie @nvlitigation.com
Attorney for Petitioner, Luis Hidalgo Jr.

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

LUIS HIDALGO, JR.,

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Case No.: 08C241394

Petitioner, Dept. No.: XXI
vs: PETITIONER’S APPENDIX FOR
SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION
Respondent,
VOLUME Il1I:
PETITIONER’S APPENDIX FOR SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF
HABEAS CORPUS
VOLUME DATE DOCUMENT BATES
I 06/20/2005 | Information HID PA0OOOO1 -
HID PA0O000O4
I 07/06/2005 | Notice Of Intent To Seek Death HID PA0OOOS -
Penalty HID PA00009
I 07/06/2005 | Notice Of Intent To Seek Death HID PAOOO10 -
Penalty HID PA00014
I 11/14/2006 | Answer To Petition For Writ of HID PA0OOO1S5 -
Mandamus Or, In the Alternative, HID PA00062
Writ of Prohibition
I 12/20/2006 | Reply to State's Answer To Petition HID PA00O063 -
For Writ of Mandamus Or, In The HID PA0O0OO79
Alternative, Writ of Prohibition
I 02/04/2008 | Guilty Plea Agreement HID PAOOOSO -
HID PA0O0O091
I 05/29/2008 | Advance Opinion 33, (No. 48233) HID PA00092 -
HID PAQO113
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VOLUME DATE DOCUMENT BATES
I 02/11/2008- | Docket HID PA0OO114 -
01/13/2016 HID PA00131
I 02/11/2008- | Minutes HID PA00132 -
11/10/2015 HID PA00200
II 02/13/2008 | Indictment HID PA00201 -
HID PA00204
II 02/20/2008 | Transcript of Proceedings: HID PA0020S5 -
Hearing re Arraignment HID PA00209
I 03/07/2008 | Notice of Intent to Seek Death Penalty | HID PA00210 -
HID PA00212
II 04/01/2008 | Transcript of Proceedings: HID PA00213 -
Hearing re Motions HID PA00238
I 05/01/2008 | Amended Indictment HID PA00239 -
HID PA00241
II 06/18/2008 | Amended Notice of Intent To Seek HID PA00242 -
Death Penalty HID PA00245
II 06/25/2008 | Notice of Motion And Motion To HID PA00246 -
Consolidate Case No. C241394 Into HID PA00258
C212667
II 12/08/2008 | Defendant Luis Hidalgo Jr. And Luis | HID PA00259 -
Hidalgo IIT's Opposition To The HID PA00440
Motion To Consolidate Case No.
(C241394 Into C212667 + Exhibits A-
G
M1 12/08/2008 | Defendant Luis Hidalgo Jr. And Luis | HID PAQO441 -
Hidalgo IIT's Opposition To The HID PA00469
Motion To Consolidate Case No.
(C241394 Into C212667, Exhibits H-K
11 12/15/2008 | Response To Defendant Luis Hidalgo, | HID PA00470 -
Jr. and Luis Hidalgo, III's Opposition | HID PA00478
To Consolidate Case No. C241394
Into C212667
M1 01/07/2009 | State's Motion To Remove Mr. HID PA00479 -
Gentile As Attorney For Defendant HID PA00499
Hidalgo, Jr., Or In The Alternative, To
Require Waivers After Defendants
Have Had True Independent Counsel
To Advise Him
11 01/16/2009 | Order Granting The State's Motion To | HID PA0O0500 -
Consolidate C241394 Into C212667 HID PA00501
11 01/16/2009 | Waiver of Rights To A Determination | HID PA00502
Of Penalty By The Trial Jury
11 01/29/2009 | Transcript of Proceedings: HID PA00503 -
Jury Trial - Day 3 HID PA00522
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VOLUME DATE DOCUMENT BATES
11 01/30/2009 | Transcript of Proceedings: HID PA00523 -
Jury Trial - Day 4 HID PA00538
M1 02/02/2009 | Transcript of Proceedings: HID PA00539 -
Jury Trial - Day 5 (Pg. 1-152) HID PA00690
IV 02/02/2009 | Transcript of Proceedings: HID PA0O0691 -
Jury Trial - Day 5 (Pg. 153-225) HID PA00763
IV 02/06/2009 | Transcript of Proceedings: HID PA00764 -
Jury Trial - Day 6 HID PA00948
\% 02/04/2009 | Transcript of Proceedings: HID PA00949 -
Jury Trial - Day 7 HID PA(01208
VI 02/05/2009 | Transcript of Proceedings: HID PA01209 -
Jury Trial - Day 8 HID PA01368
VI 02/06/2009 | Transcript of Proceedings: HID PA01369 -
Jury Trial - Day 9 HID PA(Q1553
VIII 02/09/2009 | Transcript of Proceedings: HID PA01554 -
Jury Trial - Day 10 (Pg. 1-250) HID PA(01803
IX 02/09/2009 | Transcript of Proceedings: HID PA01804 -
Jury Trial - Day 10 (Pg. 250-340) HID PA(01894
X 02/10/2009 | Transcript of Proceedings: HID PA01895 -
Jury Trial - Day 11 (Pg. 1-250) HID PA(02144
X1 02/10/2009 | Transcript of Proceedings: HID PA02145 -
Jury Trial - Day 11 (Pg. 1-251) HID PA02212
XII 02/11/2009 | Transcript of Proceedings: HID PA02213 -
Jury Trial - Day 12 (Pg. 1-250) HID PA(02464
X1 02/11/2009 | Transcript of Proceedings: HID PA02465 -
Jury Trial - Day 12 (Pg. 251-330) HID PA02545
X1V 02/12/2009 | Transcript of Proceedings: HID PA02546 -
Jury Trial - Day 13 HID PA02788
XV 02/17/2009 | Transcript of Proceedings: HID PA02789 -
Jury Trial - Day 14 HID PA02796
XVI 02/05/2009 | Court Exhibit: 2 (C212667), HID PA02797 -
Transcript of Audio Recording HID PA02814
(5/23/05)
XVI 02/05/2009 | Court Exhibit: 3 (C212667), HID PA02815 -
Transcript of Audio Recording HID PA02818
(5/24/05)
XVI No Date On | Court Exhibit: 4 (C212667), HID PA02819 -
Document | Transcript of Audio Recording (Disc | HID PA02823
Marked As Audio Enhancement)
XVI 02/05/2009 | Court Exhibit: 5 (C212667), HID PA02824 -
Transcript of Audio Recording (Disc | HID PA02853
Marked As Audio Enhancement)
XVI 05/20/2010 | Court Exhibit: 229 (C212667) HID PA02854

Note
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VOLUME DATE DOCUMENT BATES
XVI 02/10/2009 | Court Exhibit: 238 (C212667) HID PA02855 -
Phone Record HID PA02875
XVI 02/17/2009 | Jury Instructions HID PA02876 -
HID PA02930
XVII 03/10/2009 | Defendant Luis Hidalgo, Jr.'s Motion | HID PA02931 -
For Judgment Of Acquittal Or, In The | HID PA02948
Alternative, A New Trial
XVII 03/17/2009 | State's Opposition To Defendant Luis | HID PA02949 -
Hidalgo Jr.'s Motion For Judgment of | HID PA02961
Acquittal Or, In the Alternative, A
New Trial
XVII 04/17/2009 | Reply To State's Opposition To HID PA02962 -
Defendant Luis Hidalgo Jr.'s Motion HID PA02982
For Judgment of Acquittal Or, In the
Alternative, A New Trial
XVII 04/27/2009 | Supplemental Points And Authorities | HID PA02983 -
To Defendant Luis A. Hidalgo, Jr.'s HID PA02991
Motion For Judgment Of Acquittal Or,
In The Alternative, A New Trial
XVII 06/19/2009 | Luis A. Hidalgo Jr.'s Sentencing HID PA02992 -
Memorandum HID PA03030
XVII 06/23/2009 | Transcript of Proceedings: HID PA03031 -
Sentencing HID PA03058
XVII 07/06/2009 | Ex-Parte Application Requesting That | HID PA03059 -
Defendant Luis A. Hidalgo Jr.'s Ex- HID PA03060
Parte Application Requesting An
Order Declaring Him Indigent For
Purposes Of Appointing Appellate
Counsel Be Sealed
XVII 07/10/2009 | Judgment Of Conviction HID PA03061 -
HID PA03062
XVII 07/16/2009 | Luis Hidalgo, Jr.'s Notice Of Appeal HID PA03063-
HID PA03064
XVII 08/18/2009 | Amended Judgment Of Conviction HID PA03065 -
HID PA03066
XVIII 02/09/2011 | Appellant Luis A. Hidalgo, Jr.'s HID PA03067 -
Opening Brief HID PA03134
XVII 06/10/2011 | Respondent’'s Answering Brief HID PA03135 -
HID PA03196
XVII 09/30/2011 | Appellant Luis A. Hidalgo, Jr.'s Reply | HID PA03197 -
Brief HID PA(03238
XVIIL 03/09/2012 | Order Submitting Appeal For HID PA03239

Decision Without Oral Argument

PA
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VOLUME DATE DOCUMENT BATES

XVIII 03/30/2012 | Appellant's Motion To Reconsider HID PA03240 -
Submission For Decision Without HID PA03251
Oral Argument

XVII 04/17/2012 | Appellant’'s Emergency Supplemental | HID PA03252 -
Motion To Reconsider Submission HID PA03289
For Decision Without Oral Argument
+ Exhibits A-C

XIX 04/17/2012 | Appellant's Emergency Supplemental | HID PA03290 -
Motion To Reconsider Submission HID PA03329
For Decision Without Oral Argument,
Exhibit D

XIX 04/26/2012 | Notice Of Oral Argument Setting HID PA03330

XIX 06/05/2012 | Appellant's Notice of Supplemental HID PA03331 -
Authorities [NRAP31(e)] HID PA0Q3333

XIX 06/21/2012 | Order Of Affirmance HID PA03334 -

HID PA03344

XIX 07/09/2012 | Petition For Rehearing Pursuant To HID PA03345 -
Nevada Rule Of Appellate Procedure | HID PA03351
40

XIX 07/27/2012 | Order Denying Rehearing HID PA03352

XIX 08/10/2012 | Petition For En Banc Reconsideration | HID PA03353 -
Pursuant To NRAP 40A HID PA03365

XIX 09/18/2012 | Order Directing Answer To Petition HID PA03366
For En Banc Reconsideration

XIX 10/02/2012 | Answer To Petition For En Banc HID PA03367 -
Reconsideration HID PA03379

XIX 10/09/2012 | Luis A. Hidalgo, Jr.'s Motion For HID PA03380 -
Permission To File A Reply To HID PA03383
Answer To Petition For En Banc
Reconsideration

XIX 10/12/2012 | Instruction #40 Was Structural Error HID PA03384 -
And Therefore Reversible Per Se HID PA03399
Under Post-Bolden Nevada
Conspiracy Jurisprudence

XIX 11/13/2012 | Order Denying En Banc HID PA03400 -
Reconsideration HID PA03401

XIX 05/15/2013 | Letter to Clerk of Court: Petition For | HID PA03402
USSC Writ Of Certiorari Denied

XX 12/31/2013 | Petition For Writ Of Habeas Corpus HID PA03403 -
(Post Conviction) HID PA03483

XX 12/31/2013 | Motion For Appointment Of Counsel | HID PA03484 -

HID PA03488

PA
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VOLUME DATE DOCUMENT BATES

XX 01/08/2014 | Order For Petition For Writ Of Habeas | HID PA03489
Corpus

XX 01/13/2014 | State's Response To Defendant’s Pro HID PA03490 -
Per Motion For Appointment of HID PA03494
Counsel

XX 01/13/2016 | Documents received from the Nevada | HID PA03495 —
Secretary of State HID PA03516

DATED this 29" day of February, 2016.

/s/ Margaret A. Mcletchie

MARGARET A. MCLETCHIE, Nevada Bar No. 10931
MCLETCHIE SHELL LLC

701 East Bridger Ave., Suite 520

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Telephone: (702) 728-5300

Facsimile: (702) 425-8220

Email: maggie @nvlitigation.com

Attorney for Petitioner, Luis Hidalgo Jr.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

1
9) Pursuant to NRCP 5(b)(2)(B) [ hereby certify that on the 29t day of February, 2016,
3 | |I mailed a true and correct copy of the foregoing VOLUME III: PETITIONER’S APPENDIX
4 FOR SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS by depositing the
5
’ same in the United States mail, first-class postage pre-paid, to the following address:
7
STEVEN B. WOLFSON, District Attorney
8 RYAN MACDONALD, Deputy District Attorney
200 Lewis Avenue
9 P.O. Box 552212
10 Las Vegas, Nevada 89155
11 MARC DIGIACOMO, Deputy District Attorney
Office of the District Attorney
12 301 E. Clark Avenue # 100
13 Las Vegas, NV 89155

[
~

Attorneys for Respondent

L.AS VEGAS, NV 89101
(702)728-5300 (T) / (702)425-8220 (F)

Certified by: /s/ Mia Ji
An Employee of McLetchie Shell LLC

[
(@)
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10

11

12

13

14

1%

TRAN " Y PCILED

DISTRICT COURT
= 4

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA g A TEL ,,“,J
CLERK OF TRE COURT

THE STATE OF NEVADA, %
Plaintiff, | SaRT " AT

VS, %

LUIS ALONZO HIDALGO, aka LUIS

ALONSO HIDALGO I, §

Defendant, §

REFORE THE HONORABLE VALERIE ADAIR, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 7, 2008
RECORDER'S TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING RE:
DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO SET BAIL

ARPEARANCES:
FOR THE PLAINTIFF: MARC DIGIACOMO, ESQ.
Deputy District Attomey
FOR THE DEFENDANT: DOMINIC P. GENTILE, ERQL

RECORDED BY: JANIE L. OLSEN, COURT RECORDER

JRFF TRANSCRIBING
7026350301

e

PA0510

HID PA00442




L LAS VEGAS, CLARK COUNTY, NV, THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 7, 2008

3 THE COURT: Al right. State versus Luis Hidalgo. He's present in

4 |l custody with Mr. Gentile. We've got Mr. DiGiacoma for the State.

3 And Mr. Gentile, did you get a call from - did yauf staff got a call
6 il from my chambers yesterday”?

l MR, GENTILE: Yes, we did.

8 THE COURT: And | apologize that it's taken so long to get thess done.

9 | But, as you know, Ms. Wildeveld is - could go into iabor any moment, 30 we're

10 way desperate to get that aspect of the case done. And | just apologize.

" MNow, in terms of scheduling, P'm thinking the guilt phase of the

12 || Kenneth Counts case may go 1o the jury somstime this afternoon. So | domt

13 L know If we want fo maybe tentatively plan on doing the audibility hearing and the
14 |l other matters this aflernoon, or what's your preference? And, again, | apologize

13 i that we keep moving this,

18 MR, GENTILE: twould prefer to, perhaps, instead of - | don't know that
17 Hwe're going 1o get to jury selection on Monday.
18 THE COURT: Okay.
19 MR, GENTILE: And F'm thinking maybe we ought to do these things on
20 1 Monday, and start off on Tuesday with jury seigction.
21 THE COURT: Okay. That's fine. | mean — and, again, | apologize that
22 tthis is just getting -
23 MR, GENTILE: H happens.
24 THE COURT: - backed up like that,
25 Mr. DiGiacome.
JRP TRANSCRIBING
T02.635.0301
.2

PA0511
HID PA00443




1 MR, DIGIACOMO: My only «
2 | THE COURT: Todo it --

4 Hthinking that, based on where we are ai, thal we may not be done with Mr. Counts
5 {on Monday. | was also going to ask the Court to be dark, at least in the afternoon

& {lon Monday, for the evidentiary hearing that 've moved now threeg times belween

7 |lthe various trials that I've been in, once in this last trial, and start on Tussday.

& So mavbe we could do the audibility hearing on Monday morming

9 {{instead of Monday afternoon, If that would be okay with the Gourt, so that { can
10 1 get to the hearing in the afternoon. |
11 THE COQURT: The only problem is if we don't finish, assumingwe goto a
12 i penaity phase on Mr. Counts, if we don't finish that on Friday, then we will be

13 1 doing that Monday morning. |
14 MR, DIGIACOMO: That would be true. But | actually think that we'll be
15 llarguing. 8o maybe, you know, whatever time we argue, after we argue, as long
5 llas | can go to my hearing or we do it lale in the afternoon, either way so | dont

7 i have to move the State withessas for the Monday hearing again.

18 MR. GENTILE: am - U'm flexible, Judgs,
19 THE COURT: QOkay.
<0 MR, GENTILE: {-{ have a trial in San Diego that follows this, but Fm

21 I naver going to make the starling date of that trial given what's going on here. |
22 {intend to advise the judge down there,

23 THE COURT: All right. All right, iet’s just «

24 MR, GENTILE: Also, to some extent -- and | have a couple of motions

25 {ithat I'll submit to the Court and serve today. Thosa motions kind of need o be

JRP TRANSCRIBING
T2.635.0301

«Fo
PA0512
HID PA00444 '




1 Hdecided prior to opening statement.

2 THE COURT: Right.

5 MR, GENTILE: Particularly the - the debriefing of Espindola and what
4 HHaccess we're going to have {o her.

THE COURT: Okay. Allright. Let's then move - weli, what time, M.

L

s

DiGiacomo, do you think we should set all of these with Mr. Gentile for on

Monday then? |

e

8 MR, DIGIACOMO: Can we set them at 9:307 And then if Friday we don't

9 finish, 'l call Mr. Gentile to tell him -

10 THE COURT: Qr, we'll call him,

LA MR, DIGIACOMO: -- what time the Court -

12 THE COURT: is thatfing ~

13 MR, DIGIACOMO: - anticipates us to be dong and -

14 THE COURT: - with you, Mr. Gentile?

15 MR. GENTILE: Sure.

36 MR, DIGIACOMO: - give him the tima {0 ~

17 THE COURT: Allright. Otherwise, if Ms, Wildeveld, you know, wasntin
18 {ithe condition she’s in we could just start later on the Counts matter and do this.
19 HBut -

20 MR. GENTILE: No, | understand.

21 THE COURT: - | fear, as you know --

£2 MR, GENTILE: | undsrsiand.

23 THE COURT: All right. Let's go ahead, then, and set the other motions

24l over for @ 9:30 Monday moming. And then the only matter that we're going to

25 | address today, then, is the bail motion.

JRP TRANSCRIBING
702.635.0301

e
PA0513

HID PA00445




el

(224

9

oy

et

13
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As you know, | set bail at 800,000, and Mr. Gentiie wolild ke that
lowered with house arrest. |
MR. GENTILE: Okay. Let me take a couple of minutes. When the bail
argument was made on the 15" of January - | am going to read the transcript
because | think it's important to show the changes that have occurred.

At page 28 Mr, DiGiacomo, responding 1o my contention that the

State had approved that the presumption was great and the proof was gvident in
arder to provide no hail, he said the following:

The record’s pretty darn clear about the proof being evident and the
presumption being great. Although, | wilt submit to the Court the proof is
more evident and the presumption is greater as to Ms. Espindola than itis
to Mr, Hidalgo. | certainly can't highlight the evidence that's already in the
record to establish the burden to deny bail as to both defendants, Judge.

He went on {o say:

{ef's start first with - | mean, they're kind of combined together.
However, the specific language, and | know that's - the defenss
addresses -

U'm just reading here.

THE COURT: No, | know.
MR. GENTILE: - | then say from a procedural standpoint at law that it is
“that has {o be real proof. 1t cam't just be fast. You can't just ook {0
whaiever i's admissible or not. it has o be proot,
And then he says, | don't have a problem with that.
So he then goes {o the narrative, What was at the preliminary

hearing for the bind-over because justice of the peace found the proof was

JRP TRANSCRIBING
7026350301

B
PA0514
HID PA00446




o3

10

11

12

13

14

15

evident and the presumption was great when he denied bail after the
hearing, the preliminary hearing. The only thing he heard was live
wilnesses.

Prior to the murder in this case, in May of 2005, the evidence from

witnesses that will testify will be that Deangelo Carroli came to certain wilnesses

{{ and told them that Mr. H, meaning Mr. Hidalgo, Jr. ~

And, of course, he's not charged.

THE COURT: Right.

MR, GENTILE: - wanted someone killed and was willing 1o pay for
somecne 1o be killed. At that point in time one of the witnesses agreed to help
Deangelo kill an individual that he knew was a white male, whereas the other
witnesses say - says | don't want any part of that.

Later in the day Mr. Luis Hidalgo, Jr. ~ U'm sarry, the third, the
defendant here, called Deangelo Carroll, and while Deangslo Carroll was at home
with these two other withesses, and specifically told hin to come 1o the club and
hring baseball bats and garbage bags indicating to Deangelo that they were going
to do this hit, this killing.

| submit to you that the remaining four pages of an uninterrupted
narrative by Mr. DiGiacomo never again mentions anything about Luis Hidaigo H
prior to the murder taking place. The remainder of what he directs at Mr. Hidalgo
i deals with surreptitious recordings -

THE COURT. The tapes, right.

MR, GENTILE: - that took place at least five days later, and which | was
candid enough to say to you - and | think maybe you've heard them by now.

THE COURT: 've heard parts of them.
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MR, GENTILE: QOkay. Therg ~there's - there’s content in there that, f
beligved, could result in a conviction for zolicitation for murder. And, in fadt, for
two and a half years now | have been trying to have a meeting with both Mr,

Hidalgo, who's not a defendant, and Mr. Hidalgo i, who has - and the State, and

| have written two latters that have received nothing back,

Qo it's not ke we're not trying 1o come forth with this. So that's
what they had then, and that's what they said that they had much more against
Anabel Espindola and they had this thing about bring haseball bats and bags.
That was Mr. DiGiacomo speaking. He didn't have a withess.

In the trial before you, Jason Taolpu was asked al page 39 of his
testimony by Mr. Pesci, and the guestion £

Quastion: All right. Go back, just kind of backiracking & ittle bit,

Did you ever hear any conversations about baseball bats or garbage bags?

Answer. Yes, 8ir.

Ouestion: Tell us what you heard, when you heard i, and who you

heard it from, |

Answer We heard it before we went 1o go pick up PC. Deangelo

told us that he called Anabel and Anabe! was talking about baseball bats
and trash bags.

There is no merdion in the Counts case with respect to Luis Hidalgo
naving anything to do with what Mr. DiGlacomo said he had 1o do with.

Now, i vou eliminate that and you assume that Mr. DiGlacomo was
correct when he said that they had more evidence against Anabel Espindola, and
we now know that Anabel Espindola is waiting day to day to be released because,

far whatever reason, while a death penalty appeal trying to get the supreme cournt
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1o reinstate the death penalty against her was pending, the State felt that mayhe
death - or letting her go home didnt matter. And so they let her go home on
house confinement. 'm suggesting (o you that you can't - you can change your
arguments, you just iose credibility when you do.

And so I'm here before you today to say that putting Mr. Hidalgo Hl

on a home confinement release with the appropriate conditions, the bracelets, the

monitoring, allowing him to visit his attorney's office as the only place that he can

go, and even with some kind of a bail, whether it be a corporate surety bail or
whether it be a property bail, i3 ndt unreasonable at this point in time. You cannot
make and $800.000 bail, They — they struggled to try to make the bail for Anabel
Espindola and she signed the bail papers, and then did what she did.

So, you know, | don't think it's an unreasonable reguest. | think that

there have been some developments. Mr. DiGiacomo's statement about there

|| being a greater nroof against Anabe! Espindola, and the only mention that he

makes that deals with pre-murder is Luis i talking about baseball bats asfaci bags
when in reality, under cath, the proof is that it was Anabei that did that. it really
takes away from his position.

THE COURT: Although, don't - | mean, to me, from what 've heard in
ihe Counts case which, obviously, is focused more on the guiit of Mr. Counts, 1©
me the lapes are pretty compelling evidence against both Anabel Espindola and
M. Hidalgo 1. And, to me, the tapes indicate not just knowledge after the fact,
but indicate pre, knowledge before the crime, of what he's saying on the tape.
S0, you Know -

MR, GENTILE: Pwould ~

THE COURT: —now -
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disagree as to Luis. And | think that at trial you're going to learn that that's not the
case. |

THE COURT: Allright. And I'm just saying from what ['ve heard, | think
the tapes are compelling ~ compelling svidence against both of them, Why they
did what they did with respect to Ms. Espindela | do't know, but that's not what
P'm really here 1o consider today.

As you know, what I'm here to consider today is what's the

likelihood of a conviction, and what's the risk given the likelihood and the potential

penalty. You know, that 500,000 - | mean, what price is freedom is really what i
is. | mean, recognizing the death penalty isn't on the table, but that he could be
inoking at, you know, 40 years in prison. What is that worth?

And, you know, | know in your brief you talk about, well, house
arrest and they do that; hut the problem is | don't know exactly how the detention

center -- obviously, he wouldn't be on probation with house arvest with a probation

|| officer monitoring him and immediately knowing if he didn't answer the phone and

then going out to pick him up and getling -- arresting hum.

When you're - go through house arrest af the jail, | don't know that
vou get that same kind of immediate response if someone absconds off house
arrest,

MR. GENTILE: | have made --

THE CQURT: And Hthink -

MR, GENTILE:, |-

THE COURT: --that that's kind of what you're trying to guaranies the

Court, well, you know, it would be immaediately apparent if he wasn't in the house
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or didn’t answer the phone or whatever. And | dor't know how immediate that
would come to law enforcement’s attention to where they could go and find him
right away. And == unless| misread your -- your brief, { think that that was
maybe ong of the points.

MR GENTILE: Well its my understanding, and [ only have informal
anecdotal knowledge. | have not -

THE COURT: Thank goodness none of us have personal knowledge.

MR, GENTILE: Right. And | hope that we are as adamant about as this
thing on personal knowledge when we go to trial next week as we sgem o not be
here.

The - essentially I'm reporting to the Court what Pye leamned na -

|in a survey from people at the jail, and psople that monitor these systems. They

nave almost no problems with it. And it would seem {0 me that in conjunction with
a bail and the home confinement, you know, you've got & littie bit more than just
the home confinament.

So, | mean, if you were to reduce the bail - and 'm not - Fm not
trying to sell a Persian rug hers. I'm not trying to bargain. Okay? I'm trying to gst
a number that can be made. If you were to reduce the bail to 200,000 and have
home confinement, then he can be released.

THE COURT: Mr. - well, except weren't they geing to be able 0 cobble
tagether the bail on Anabetl Espindola, which | believe | set at $550,0007 The
reason for the discrepancy in the two was my sort of analysis of the case being
that he was more the mastermind of it And so that - even though maybe there
was maore direct proof on Anabel which [ wasnt as aware of.

Now having sat through the trial and actually heard what the
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witnesses were going 1o say, that he, you know, heing the mastermind, 1 felt was

maybe, | don't know, more dangerous or more likely to flee or abscond or
serﬁeﬁhing like that.

ME. GENTILE: Your Honor, | think he -

THE COURT: And that was -- |'m just explaining my reasoning, You may
disagree with . You don't need to disagres with it -

MR, GENTILE: |-1think--

THE COURT. - on the record -

MR, GENTILE: ~ the State would -

THE COURT: - but that -~ thal was -

MR, GENTILE: - disagree with who was --

THE COURT: - the reason | -

MR, GENTILE: - the mastermind.

MR, DIGIACOMO: Actually, | wouldn't, if | can address that.

THE COURT: All right.

MR, DIGIACOMO: i you recall, | know Mr, Gentile didn't read it {o you, |
but Rontas Zone, at the preliminary hearing, indicated the baseball bats and
garbage bags was Mr. - Litle Lou's, or Mr. Hidalgo i's idea. And during the
course of the trial as well he testified' that when Deangelo first approaches him
and telis him Mr. H wants a guy hit, they ask him who told you that. He says Little
Lou. Little Lou has aiways‘been_ihe individual that has been the — the driving
force bahind it

Mow, | would agres with Mr. Gentile that prior to Saturday, or
maybe Monday morning, the case for conviction on Ms. Espindola was belter,

and that's exactly what | said when we were arguing the proof is evident and the
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presumption is great. But | recall Mr. Gentile handing you the transcript of
Deangelo Carroll and asking you to consider the transcript of Deangsio.

And if you read that transoript of Deangelo Carroll, well, Anabel has
knowledge and she acts - and she does acts in furtherance. She cerlainly isnt
the person who wants this person dead. She's not the individual that has a
motive to kil this individual, and it is Mr. Hidaigo 1, as well as Mr. H. And based
upon that, the Court has to consider the fact that immediately upon learning that
the other people in the van may go to the police, this guy wants them killed too,

And he makes other statements that are clearly indicative that he

has knowledge of the conspiracy. There is a phone call from his - from his cell

shone to Deangelo Camroif’'s home immediately before Deangelo Carroil goes to

| the Palomino correborating the statements of Rontae Zone and the other

avidence that you are going to hear on the case, Judge. And so certainly Mr.
Gentile can take a position about whether or not there should or should not be
hail,

{et's address Anabel Espindola. Upon leaming that the possibility
that that situation was going to come about, Mr. H did everything in his powerlo
try and bail her out of jail. And - and certainly her concern about what it is the
position she’s in right now has to do with her fear for her safety, as well as what's
going 1o happen to her in the future, Judge.

And so based upon all that | would urge the Court - | argued that
the proof is evident and the presumption is greal. And let me tell you, now that
we have an additional witness, the proof is really svident and the presumption is

very great that he's going to get convicted. He shouldn't have bail. Um a willing -

the Court made a ruling, but | don't think you should now suddenly reduce it.
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And. as | recall the motion, the motion was that neither one of them
could make bail. As soon as they learned that Ms. Espindola may be in a position
where they want her out of custady, they did everything in their power 1o g SO
And 'l submit it to the Court that this should not be reduced, Judgs.

MR, GENTILE: | need to correct the record. The moment that bail was
entered. the moment we learned of it - because | think it kind of had a time lag,
we learned of it on a Wednesday, but | | think you probably entered i, it just
didr’t make the minutes. | immediately contacted All Star Bail Bonds ana we
immediately began seeking bail for - we knew at that poeint in time that there
would not be enough prermium 1o bail both out.

And i -- it was - the efforts that were put forth, which took about a
weak and g half because of the property that needed to be put up as coilateral,
and raising the premium took about a week and a half. Butit-it« it didn't start
it started when bail was set. And | say that 1o you as an officer of the court based
on conversations that | had with bail bondsmen,

THE COURT: Again, | mean, as you know, what the Court looks at is
what's the evidence, what's the tikelihood, in my view, of conviction, and what's
the penalty and how hard is it, how meaningful is the amount of money.

You have {0 set an amount of money that's meaningful enough that
if they make it, there's a great deterrent, whether it's because of their family who
has put property or whataever on the line or their own monay. You can't set il 8o
jow that, you know, they're going to say, well, {0 insure - you know what | mean?

Even if he gets life with the possibility of parcle, assuming he's
convicted of the first degree murder, | - you know, it's 40 years or, you know, @
substantial period of time. And so thal's why | set the - the price that | gdid.
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Because, to me, you know, to lower it 250, given whatever wherewithal they might
have, you need to set it at an amount that it really is so substantial and woulld be
so arduous for him or his family that he's going to come back, notwithstanding the
fact that, you know, if there’s a conviction he's going fo prison,

And that's why | thought the $800,000 was reasonable, and | still
think it's reasonable. And If anything, truthfully, Mr. Gentile, silting through the
Counts case has made me more certain of that position rather than maybe less
certain of it. So the motion is denied, but Il see counsel at the bench on sort of
an unreiated aspect.

MR. GENTILE: Would the Court consider a — instead of a corporate
surely bail a property bail?

MR. DIGIACOMO: Can we approach on it?

THE COURT: $800,000 property?

M. DIGIACOMO: Judge, can we --

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR, GENTILE: - approach onit?

{Conference at the bench.)

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Gentile, in ferms of the property issue, if your
chiert comes up with $800,000 in property and you would like the Courtio
consider whether that would satisfy the bond requirement, we'll hold a hearing on
that giving the State an opporiunity to be heard on that as well. But for right now,
barring further order, the order stands.

So -- and, again, the Court will accommodate anything else in tenms
of the logistics with Mr. Hidalgo 1 being able 0 mest with you s0 that you can be

adequately prepared to defend the case.
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ME. DIGIACOMO: Thank you, Judge.
THE COURT: Allright, Thank you.
Q{0

ATTEST: | hereby certify that | have truly and correctly transcribed the
audioividen proceedings in the above-entitied case to the best of my ability.
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18 going 1o be | got raiiaaded, | shouid've taken a deal against my dad or vice
versa, Who knows? Because, you know, the evidence could be that this was all
really Deangelo and the son working together to - to push dad in the direction of
this whole incident, so that - that’s one of the concerns.

The other concern, which we've discussed somewhat with Your
Honor already, is Ms. Espindola, which we've brought up. And if 'm going over
something that you feel you've already addressed, let me know. But Ms.
tspindola has indicated that she has had interactions with Mr. Gentile and Ms.
Armeni in preparation for trial.

Lat's just take from the time of the murder until trial. We'll start
State’s concern is that the - the defense counsel may have gathered information
in their joint defense preparation, which is somathing that they could use to
impeach, impugn, attack the credibility of Ms. Espindola, which the State does not
Know because wa're not privy 1o that same information.

There’s also a long standing relationship to Mr. Gentile and father,
Luis Hidalgo I, that predates the - the homicide. So we'rs going back in time.
specifically, we're in possession and the defense is in possession of police
reporis that were generated by the visit to the police by Luis Hidalgo !, father, and
Anabel Espindola.

And the reports even indicate that it was at the behest, or not

behest, but at the advice of Mr, (Gentile to go to make a report about an alleged

Hidaigo l. | don't know what evidence, if any, Mr. Gentile has, sven if it is just

dealing with Mr. Hidalgo i, that came from that represemation,

JRP TRANSCRIBING
702 8350301

B
PA0527
HID PAQ0459




Wait a minute. We omitted the date.
MR. GENTILE: Yeah. This needs {o be dated.
THE COURT: Or he omitted the date.
(Mr. Hidalgo 11l exils the courtroom.)
(Mr. Hidalgo, Jr. enters the courtroom.)
THE COURT: Okay. You can sit over there at counse! {able.
And for the record, Mr. Hidalgo il has been removed from the

courtroom, and Mr. Hidalgo, Jr., or Mr. Hidalgo, I, is now present,
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| CPARTRICT COURTY
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i # THE STATE OF NTWWADA, 3
i1 Pluinizfy, g Case Mo, 241394
L2 Y- % Pept No, KXY
I3 § LU HIDALGO IR, ',2
#IRAUE34 3
14 }
13 Died ﬁﬁdmil'ﬂ i
i 63 o
CORBECTED
17 NOTICE OF INTENT TO SERE DEATH PEMALTY
1¥ COMTS NOW. the Stwie of Nevads, through DAVITI ROGER, Clark Coumy THagrict

13 § Antoraey, by and through MARC DIGIACOMO, Chief Depiuy Tistricy Aftorncy, pursiant (o
20§ NRS §17S5.532 and NRS §200.033. and Novads Supreme Courr Rule 3350, declares s
21§ intention to seck the death penalty af o ponalty hearing, Furthermore, the State of Nevada
22§ diseloses that it will present evidones of the following a garavating circumstances:

23 1. The murder was committed by a person. for himself or another, to roceive AIQHQY
24 §| or any ather thing of monctary valoe, to-wit by

253 Lin or about May 19, 2003, the ownor of the Paloming Club, Tads Hidalgo, Jr., locacd

26 § at 1848 Worth f.as Vegas Roulovard, made it kwown, that he would DIy sameone o kil

27 I Timothy Jay Hadland. who was s former emploves of the chib. Tuis Hidal g, Jr, was angry

28§ with the vigtim, Timgthy Jay Hadiend, becanse aflor his tiring from the club, Thnothy Jay
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Hadland was hurting thc club’s business by “bad mouthing” the chab by apreading rumors
about Tuis Hidalgo Tr,. and abowt the club. Thari g 4 conversation that day. Tiofondant Tuis
Hidalgn, W oid Tuin B idalgo. Jr. that he would ot make as much mongy as gther strip olub
ewners i Tads Hidalge, v, did nof do somothing 1o Timothy Jav Hadiand, The Palomino
Uhubs i not located on the Steip and its business relics heavily on customers being brought to
the elub by cabs. Tho club was losing money because of Timothy Jay Hadland's actions and
as such Tois Hidalgo Ir. wanted him killed o thas he, his business, and his emplovees
would be better off Binancially by the increased Hlow of clionts afloe Timaothy Jay Hadland
was silonced.

(n the samo date, Tals Hidalgo, W, & manager of the Palomine Club, called
Deangela Carroll and told him to come 1o the club and “bring baschall bats and garbage
bags,”  When Thefondant Carroll arrived at the Palamine Clab, T.uis Widalgo. Jr. hired
Txeangelo Carrofl 3o kill Timothy Jay Hadland, Afier convoying this informigion and
procuring Peangelo Carvoll, Tcangelo Carroll went 1o 1678 “Tov Street o the residoncs of
Eenncth Counts and onlisted Defondant Konneh Comns 10 kil Timothy Jav Hadland,
Defondant Neangelo Carrell thon drove Iefendants Kenneth Counts and Tayson Tacipy, as
well as whness Rontas Zone, out W the arca of Motth Shore Road ar Lake wload, where
Defondant Kenneth Counts shot and killed Timothy Jay Hadiand. |

After the killing, the group drove back to the Palomine Club and Defsndant Theangelo
Carroll ontored the club with Dotondant Kenneth Counts, Pefendant Tloangslo Carred] won
into Tuls Hidalgo Jr's office and met with him antd Anabel Tispindoln, At that timg
Ticfondant Txeangelo Cartoll announced that, it was done” and that Defendam Kenncth
Counts wanted 1o be paid, Luis Hidalys Jr., then 10ld Anabel Espindoly (o got $5,000. which
Defendant Anabel Pspindols did and which she provided 1o Tefondant Thoangolo Carrald
who then provided money 1o Dofondam Kenngth Counts, Txefondant Konnoth Counts then
feft the club i a cab.

These facts support the aggravatoer bocause the murder was eonymined for the PUEDOST

af impraving the profits 1o the business ang the e ployess of the Paloming Club. The owaer
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b § ofthe olub, Tuls Hidalgo Jr. wanted Timothy Jay Fadland killed so thot he could make more

4§ mongy in the steip olub busiovss, Tn addition, these facts support murder for hire under the
3 4 agaravator as Dofondams Kenncth Counts and Teangeio Carvoll recelved mongy for killing
4 Timothy Jay Hadland,
50 The basls for this aggravator is the sppravatod nature of the eobme itself, The
6 | cvidenee upon which the Stte will roly g the estimony and exhibits imtroduced during the
7 B guiltor ponalty phase of the wial, as woll 25 the vordiots from the guilt phase.
8 fn filing this NOTICTE, the State incorporaies alf pleadings, witnoss lists, notieos and
9§ other discovery materials aleeady provided to Ticfendamt by the OfFicr of the Distiey
1§ Autoency as part of fts opon-file policy as well gs any fature discovery rescived and provided
1R EE to Drefondant,
12 DATTER this _ 6t day of March, 2008.
13 | Resprotfudly submyitted.
t4 DAVID ROGER
Clark County Tlistrict Atorney
L3 - Nevada Bar 8002781
16
17 BY ASMARC TIGIACOMO
i MARU THUIACOMO T
18 Chael Beputy District Allomey
g Nevada Bar 20069558
20
. II CERTIFICATE OF FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION
ey F hereby conify that service of the above and forcgoing NOTICT OF INTENT T
73 SEEK DEATH PENALYTY. was made this §° day of MARCH, 2008, by fwsimile
24 {ransmissian o)
Dominic Gentdle, Psa.
23 3682666
26 e anicls s
I} secretary for the Tistnicl Anornoy s
27 OlLtce
28
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I NISD
DAVID ROGER

2 B Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #002781
3 MARC DIGIACOMO
Chicf Deputy Tstriet Attornoy
4 ff Nevada Bar 2006455
) "’UfJ owis Avonuy
3 L Ve %.:m, Nevada BRI8S-221
B 702y 871-25300
5 Atorney for Plaintify
?. >
0 BRISTRICT OOWURY
s B LARK QOUNTY. NEVALIA
o 4
| (o I THT STATE OF NTIVADIA, ;
13 Plalndift, ] Case Mo, C212667
12 ¥ g~ % Pept No, XY
3
13§ LU ALONSO RIDALGOL Y 3
71849634 ;
14 3
15 Pefondant g
16
iy AMERDED NOTICE OF IKTEXNT TO SEEK DEATH PENALTY
2 COMES NOW, the Siate of Novada, through DAV ROGER, Clark Conaty 1nsteict
t Adlorney, by and through MARC DIGIACOMO, Chiel Deputy Dhstrict Allorey, pursuant (o

| NRS §175.552 and NRS §200.033. and Novads Suprome Cour Rule 250, deelares itg
intention 1o scek the dowth ponahy gt a penalty hearing, Furthr:mmm, the State of Wevada
: discloges thar it will presem ovidenes of the following sgeravating Sireumstanees:

. 1. The murder was committod by g person, for himsolf or another, 10 recoive mongy
24 or any other thing of monctary value, ro-wit biy:

On or about May 19, 2005, the cwner of the Palomine Club, Tuis Hidalge. Jr., located
at 1848 Worth T.as Vegas Houleverd, made B known, thay he would poy somicone 1o kill
' Timothy Jay Hadland. who was 8 former omployes of the olub. Prior to May 19, 2008,
Timothy Jay Hadland had been fired from the Palomine Club for siealing, On May 19,

PA0534
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. 2003, Tuis Hidalgo Jr. (the owner of the club) and Tais Hidalgo, TTT (the owner's son and 2
5 §i managor st the club). learned that Timothy Ty Hadiand had boen Ybad miguthing” the ehub o
3 cab drivers. During o conversation that day, Defoendant Tuis Hidalgo, 11T 1old T.uis Hidalgo,
" Je. that he would not make as mueh money as other strip club owaers 17T uis Hidal g, Jr, digd
. net do somcthing 1o Timothy Jay Madiand. The Pelaming Chub is not lacated on the Strip
and its business relies heavily on customens being brought to the club by cabs. Tho club was
? losing money bocause of Timothy Jay Wadland's actions and ns such Tabs H idalgo v,
/ wantod him kitied so that he, hig business, and bis cmployocs would be betor off finangially
§ by fiE‘u: increased flow of clents aller Tonolhy Jay Dadland was silenced. Addivonally,
¥ Killing "{Tmothy Jay Hadlangd would sead a message 1o other poople nor 1o stead from the
10 Paloming, thorohy increasing his profis.
2 On the same date, Luis Midelpo, 1, a manager of the Palomine Club, galled
2 4 Peangelo Curroll und told him to come w the club ang “hring baseball bats and garhuge

38 bags” When Dofendsnt Carroll atrivod at the Palomine Clob, Luis Hidalgo, r.. bired

4] Aoy

18 Deangelo Carroll o kill Timothy Juy Hedland,  Aller conveying (his infosmuation and |
1} procuring LDeangele Carrold, Leangelo Carroll went 1o 1676 “X™ Streer to hie rosidence of
Hh @ Kenncth Counts and onlisted Defendant Konnoth Counts ta kil Timothy Jay Hadland,
17§ Defondant Thoangolo Carroll then drove Defondants Kenneth Counts and Jayson Taocipu, 49
18 ¥ woll ay witness Rontae Zone, owt to the area of Nowh Shore Road ar T.ake Mead, whoro

ju i Dofondant Kennoth Copnts shot and kilied Timothy Iny Hadiand.

a5 o Aftor the killing. the group deove back to the Palomine Club and Tizfondant Deangelo
a1 Carroll enteesd the club with Tiefondant Kennesh Counts. Defondant Deangolo Carroll wont
2o § o Tais Hidalgo Jo's officc and mot with him and Asabol Hapindola, At thar fimg
§ Dofondant Dieangolo Canoll annownced that, “it was done™ and that Defendam Keonoth
Lotmis wanled 10 be peid. Luis Hidale dr., then 1018 Angbel Espindola fo get $5,000. which

Defendant Anabel Tspindola did and which she provided 1o Dofondant Tangolo Carrgli
| who theo provided mency to Diofendant Kennerh Counis, Defendant Konnoth Counts then
| {oR the club o g cab.

Theee fiets suppont the aggravator boeeause the murder was commitied for the purpose

PV R AT ORI YN R A S Yahe

W]
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of improving the profits 1o the business and the employess of the Paloming Club, The owner

!
- 1 of the club, Tuis Hidalgo Jr., porcoived that profits were being et by the vietim, Timonthy
: Jav Hadland “bad mouthing” him and the club. As such, Tagls Hidlalgo Jr.. used employoecs,
f wefendants Ansbol Tapindoia Tais Hidaige, 1. and Tleangelo Corroll {0 carry o his
: wishos, Defendant Tads Hidalge, 1 as an omploves of the Palomine Chib svould recgive,
T} “moncy or any other thing of monetary value™ by the profits going back up by the silencing
° of Timothy Jay Hadland, Tn additon, those facte support eweder for hirs undor the
aggravaor as Dofendants Kenneth Counts and Deangelo Carvoll roccived money for killing
S Timethy Juy Hudlund,
i The basis for this sporavator is the sgeravaied noture of the orine inelfl  The
i

evidence apon which the Ste will rely s the westimony and cxhibits introduced during the
tH guilt or pepalty phase of the rdal. as well as the vardicts from the guile phase,

in [Hing this NOTICE, the State incorporates all pleadings, wimess Hisis, notices ond
13§ other discovery materials alreedy provided 1o Defendant by the Office of the District
4§ Attorney as parl ol its open-[ile policy as well s any {uture discovery received ard provided

IS to Defondanr.,

16 DIATTT this 18th day of Junc, 2008,
b Respeetfully submiftod,
I8 : DAVID ROGGER
Clark County Diatriot Atgomey
19 0 Nevada Bar ¥002781
20
2 By far‘”%’x?{i m(}r ACOMCG
= AART TR TORNG
e | i.fhict ¢ m}r Prgtrict Atorngy
" Novads Bar #{06235
23
34
28
s
37
38
i
3 PR I A TR Y R A 0% 8 Tl
:1
PA0536

HID PA00468




GClark County DA =¥ 008 3:17:50 BM BAGE 004 Fax Ssrvar

HDominic Gentile COMDANY:

{
N CORTIFICATE OF TACSIMILE TRANSMISSION
1 F horeby contify that sorviee of the above and forcgoing AMTNDRD NOTICR OF
4 INTENT T STEE DRATH PHRNATLTY, was made this 18th day of Junc, 2008, by
; Fresimile tronsmisgion to
N Dlominie Gentile, Fsg.
6 I6Q.1566
7
/513 Dianiels
& Seeremry Tor the 1Jistried Aforney's
Lalizge
0
14§ g
27
28 i
ii ' =3 PIRBIRN R AP LA SR B G Tl
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1 | RSPN / g { A
DAVID ROGER

CLERK OF THE COURTY

2 ¥ Clark County District Attorney
. I Nevada Bar #002781
3 4 MARC DIGIACOMO

Chief Deputy District Attomey
4 | Nevada Bar #000955

200 Lewis Avenue

3§ Las Vegas, Nevada 89155.2212
(T02) 671-2500

& § Aitomey for Plaintiff

? - . 2 Py T
, DISTRICT COURT (4 2 é/ /3 é/
* CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
9 - . |
i THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
10 |
Plaintiff, % CASENO:  (212¢67/C241394
H VS~ f DEPTNO: XXI e
12 3
LUIS ALONSO HIDALGO, Il !
13 | #1849634 )
LUIS HIDALGO, JR. |
14 || #1579522, %
Defendant. ;
16 -'

b RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT LUIS HIDALGQ, JR. AND LULS HIDALGO, IS

18 OPPOSITION TO CONSOLIDATE CASE NO. C241394 INTO C212667

19 DATE OF HEARING: 12/19/08

-0 | TIME OF HEARING: 9:30 AM.

21 COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by DAVID ROGER, District Attorney, through
22 § MARC DIGIACOMO, Chief Deputy District Atlorney, and hereby submits the attached
73

Points and Aunthorities in Response to Defendant’s Opposition to the Motion to Consolidate
24 | Case No. C241394 o C212667.

23 This response is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the

YA , : _ ce . ‘ _ . TRY
<b # atiached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the tune of hearing, 1

deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.

C\Pyosgram FiiesWeevis. Com\Document Convenesiempt 3161 7244 3482.D0C
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a 376 F.Supp.2d 96, 100 (2008). However, gven if the Court agrees that the standard 1§

| make citation {0 some lower federal court case law. See Untied States v. Catalan-Roman,
heightened, the Defendants still need to point to the specific tral right to be infringed. Thew

| failure to do so, even under the heightened standard, is a compeliing reason 1o hold a jomt

| trial,

| Defendant may try to point the finger at the other, Mr. Gentile indicated to this Court that i

i
“’I

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES '§

AT At A R MR MY Y S¥on O YW MR

¥

While volurminous, Defendant’s opposition io consolidation can easily be understood
by taking thewr arguments to a lopical conclusion. To accept the arguments of counsel, no
two capital cases should ever be tnied together. For thus case, unlike almost all other cases m
which co-defendants would be tried together presents not a single cognizable ground in

Mevada for separate trials,

e
A Wn R I R AU el il . 2 Pk b . o P P
r
<

in Nevada, the semingl case on severance, as cited in the motion for consolidation, 1s
Marshall v. State, 118 Nev, 442, 536 P.3d 376 (2002}, wherein the Nevada Supreme Court
ruled that even where antagonistic defenses were asseried, joinder was still proper. That
helding, is consistent with Zafire v. United States, 506 Uk, 534, 113 5.0t 933 ('1*}}‘}}3}!%
which held that in order 1o be entitled to separate trials, Defendants st establish that ab
specific trial right would have 1o be compromised for separate tnials 1o be proper. Id at 338, *‘
Quite simply, the defense has posited no specific trial right that could be infringed in the {

!
current case. As such, separaie tnials are not appropriate, f

-

ey

Defendants also assert that capital cases should be given a heightened standard of

review favoring severance. While providing no conirolling authority for this position, they

A R TR AR e, T R DA LA Ay NP B R Hor
'

v
¥
)
r

L
THE DEFENSES CANNQOT BE ANTAGUNISTIC NOR IS THERE A SPECIFIC o,
TRIAL RIGHT WHICE WILL BE INFRINGED

P .
* . e
e Py £ e~ B 0 iR e - Viraereult R §

Perhaps unique in its circumstances, the instance case is one where the defenses

L VI e

cannet be antagonistic as a matter of law. While the State bas maintained that either

;

. ' :’
{ :‘J"rfgmm Filss\Nesvia Domilocument Convertariemp 3 75172445482 TN
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- charged with crimes arising from the surreptitious recordings where Defendant Hidalgo, Jr.

-rx

P S R

such a situation would not gccur. In facy, if either Defendant were (o pomt the finger at the
other Defendant, Mr, Gentile would have a conthict and have 1o withdraw, However, Mr. |
(Gentile still represents Mr, Hidalgo, Jr. and previously represented Mr. Hidalgo, 1H, m%
certainly that canmot occur. In the last court appearance, Mr. Gentile reiterated there was b E
conflict, hence antagonistic defenses are only vaguely references to the Court and claimed 16 :
‘
need 10 be presented to the court ex parte. ‘
Defendant has presented no authority of the right to present his evidence of ‘;
z
antagonistic defonses ex parte.  To allow such an unprecedented ex parte colioguy with thi :
Court would allow Defendants to argue their severance without the opposing side to rebut g
why such allegations can not survive the testing that is required under Marshall, supra. i
The other trial right would be the admission againsi one Defendant a particular pigce “

of evidence which is not admissible against another Defendant, See Chartier v, State, 191

P.3d 1182 (Nev.,2008). However, uniguely in this case, that will not ocour.’ In the instant
case, every witness called by the State will be the same in a joint and severed trial. Every
piece of evidence sought 1o be admitted will be the same in a joint and severed trial. As 5
such, the defense cannot and does not point to a piece of evidence which will be admitted. n

The most Defendants have been able to point to is that Defendant Hidalgo, Il is |

is not.” Notwithstanding, the evidence, the surreptitious recordings themselves, has been

e T T

. " . : , D . _ - 3
heavily ltigated in this matter and clearly admissible against both Defendants.” Defendantg

assert there ars multiple conspiracies, however, only one conspiracy 15 alleged with nmmpiﬁ

Y Ry e R AL A

crimes stemming from that one conspiracy.

Hearsay is an out of court statement, offered in evidence to prove the truth of the

' Theoretically, the State could seek to fuiroduce ihe siaterent of Defendant Hidalge, Ml ing jmm wial, However,
should the Court consolidale, the Stade wall nol seek o heroduce the subsianee ol ibe stalerent whreh references
Defendant Hidalgo, Ir,

* As the Court has told every eriminst jury, 3 charge is merely an allegation and not any evidence thet & crime was
committed. As such, 8 mere charge cannod be the basis for severance without some evidence being different. b
* In co~defendant Counts’ trial, he sought 1o preclude the sdmission of the tapes 83 well, howeve, after reviewing the
pedevant case baw, the Cowt made the proper determaingtion that they were admissible against all Delendanis EEa

e e o ——— -

ral
£ AProgram Files\Naevia Com\Document Convertertenmph3 761 72-445482.00C
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HID PA00472

et

e

R ey
~




(Page 4

o

LR s s

1= oD e

i
!

s! !
o

i matter asserted unless the statement is offered against a party and s a statement by a ¢os!

| conspirator of a parly during the couwrse and in furtherance of the couspiracy. NRSN:

__ B
SEO35(3)e). In other words, co-conspirator statements arg non-hearsay.  The only

| requirgment iy that af the time the stalements were made, the declarant was a member of the

| conspiracy, and the conspiracy was ongoing. See McDowell v Staie, 103 Nev, 527, 746 P.2d

| member of the conspiracy at the time the statement was made. See id. Moreover, the person |

who hears the statement, need not be a co-conspirater. See Fish v, State, 92 Nev. 272, 548

;
P.2d 338 (1976). Finally, the conspiracy continugs until such time as the co-couspirators ;

b

have successfully concealed their crime. See Crew v. State, 100 Nev, 38, 675 P.2d 986

{(1984) {citing Foss v. State, 92 Ney. 163, $47 P.2d 688 (1974)).

:
Certainly a discussion about how to prevent the witnesses to the ¢rime from providing |

the information to the police it ongong efforts of the conspiracy.  Moreover, while the |
evidence demonstrates that Defendant Counts {who this Court admitted the recordings in his
trial) had absolutely no knowledge of the conversations, the same cannot be said for
Defendant Hidalgo, Jr.  The evidence will show that Defendant Hidalgo, Jr. was consuhied
during the surreptitious recordings. This evidence will be vorroborated by the fact that
Diefendant Hidalgo, Jr. was present in the Auto Shop at the time of the recordings. Ina

subsequent search warrant, a note indicating that Defendant Hidalgo, Jr. was cencemggﬂé

about surveillauce was found in the Aute Shop and confirmed thra scientfic testing 1o have
been written by Defendant Hidalgo, Jr. -,

Based upon all of the foregoing, thers is simply no trial right nor antagonistic defense

upon which to base separate trigls. Therefore, the Court wounld have to find another basis,

I3

All of the other reasons asserted in the opposition cannot possibly be the basis for separatg

trials, as those concerned would apply 1o any joint capital tial. Certainly, Detendauts havg

presented no particular facts to justify in this case. s
rf ’f j’ E

i

{Z?:‘_(}‘rdgra:m FilgsNegvda Domiocuiens Convertereamp 3704 72445482 LUK
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i same evidence differently. In fact, it appears that Defendant are asserting a right to argue to |
| the jury in one trial, that the names used on the recordings are referring to one individual
i while arguing to another jury that the names apply to the other. Such an argument cannot

| stand scrutiny.

Defendant Hidalgo, I solicited the murder of witnesses would prejudice a sentence for
, Defendant Hidalgo, Jr. However, even in separate trials, the jury will be aware that

! Defendant Hidalgo, [T solicited the murder of witnesses as that is evidence of the conspiracy -

| iself to which Defendamt Hidalgo, Ir. is charged.

ik |
THE NEED FOR INDIVIDUALIZED SENTENCES CANNOT BE A BASISFOR
SEPARATE TRIALS N *

vz
a3

idividualized sentences.  Without examples specific 1o the instant case, the Cowrt would |
have to find that no capital cases should be tried together, a proposition while not explicitly !

stated by Defendants, 15 essentially their argument to the Court,

1110

THE FACT THAT TWO DIFFERENT JURIES MAY CONFUSE THE MEANING 3
OF ONE PIECE OF EVIDENCE I5 AN ARGUMENT FOR, NOT AGAINST, A |
JOINT TRIAL B
On of the vagaries of separate trnials 1s the Inconsistency m verdicts, If}f:fendamé::
appear to assert that one jury should be allowed to interpret a piece of evidence (the
surreptitious recordings) in one manner, and another jury should interpret them in a different

manner, Such a conclusion viliates any sense of a jury inal being a search for the truth, The;f:

compelling reason to have ong trial is 1o ensure that two different juries do not interpret the

The fallacy of this argument can be seen by Defendants arguing that the fact that

¥

-

Defendants agsert, without explaining what mitigation would be offered, the

difference in mitigation evidence should be a basis for separate trials. However, 1o draw that
("J:\Pnéam Frlas\Nesvia Com\Dociument Converterempl3 78172 445482 1 kR
PA0542

HID PA00474




{Page & ol 27

(S T AN

c:"x i...-“'l v&“

]

conclusion, would mean that capital defendants should never be iried jointly. Defendants

have presented no case law 1o support that conclusion, because it clearmg is mnapposiie o

P

controlling Nevada Law.,

v L

Defendants also assert without authority that deciding penally is never comparative,

However, the Nevada Supreme Court disagrees, In Flanagan v. State, 107 Nev, 243, 810

P.2d 759 (1991) (judgmens vacated on other grounds, Moore v, Nevada, 503 U.B. 930, 112

S.Ct. 1463, 117 L.Ed.2d 609, 60 USLW 3189, 60 USLW 3644, 60 USLW 3651 (U.5.Nev. -

Mar 23, 19923, the Court held, interestingly v a twe-codefendant cepital tnal, thai

proportionality of sentence between Defendants and co-defendants was an appropnate:

consideration for the jury:

Flanagan and Moore further contend that the district court's
allowance of testimony reparding the semtences of the other four co-
defendants violated their Eighth Amendment rights to have the jury
consider their individual characters and records and the circumstances
of their particular crimes. See Woodson v, North Carolina, 428 ULS,
280, 3()1?, 06 S.Ct. 2978, 2991, 49 L.Ed.2d 944 {1976). Appellants 3
cite authority from several other jurisdictions in support of their B
argument that the prosecution should not _have been allowed W
introdoce and argue this evidence, See, e.g., People v. Belmoutes, 45

Cal.3d 744, 248 Cal Rpir. 126, 795 P.2d 310 (198R). o

At trial, the district court allowed testimony b¥ pne of the prosecutors 1

from the original trial and penalty hearing. The prosecutor testified
that co-defendant Johnny Ray Luckett had received four consecutive
sentences of life without the possibility of parele, and that co-
defendant Roy McDowell had received four consecutive sentences of
e with the possibility of parole,

We conclode that the district court did not err in allowing the
testimony about the sentences of the other co-defendants. The
evidence was admissible under NRS 1755352 as “any other matter
which the court deems relevant..” Furthermore, the jury was
instructed that it was not bound by the previous sentences. We
believe that i1 was proper and helpful for the jury o consider the
punishments imposed on the co-defendants. bee Slate v, McKinney,
107 Idaho 180, 087 P.2d 570 (1984).

Id at 247-8. In their argument to the Court, Defendants assert the exact opposite holding of
the Nevada Supreme Court based upon analysis of the same United States Supreme Court

case rejected by the Nevada Supreme Court.

CoProfiram Files\Neavia ComiDocument Convarleniemp 3 761 72-445482.D0C
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NONE OF THE OTHER ASSERTED REASONS BY DEFENDANTS SURVIVE
SCRUTINY OF THEIR CLAIMS

Defendant asserts that the instanl two {2) hispanic defendants should be tried

separately based upon racial prejudice.  How severance would somchow alleviate these
concerns is never explained, as both juries would know the races of both Defendants. The

only authority cited for such argument is a case where two charges of murder against the

same defendant was the basis for severance. See Williams v, Superior Court, 36 Cal.3d 441, -

452-3 (1984). Why that case is relevant to the instant discussion 15 never really asserted. To
accept Defendanis argument, the Court would have to find as a matier of iaw, that two

defendants of the same race could never be tried in the same trigl. That assertion bas no

hasis in law. .

Defendant also asserts “spillover effect” between the two Defendants, However,

spillover is related to evidence admitted against one Defendant which is not admitied against

another. Here, that siruply is not the case. The evidence is the same against both defendants.

To claim that the evidence is stronger against one and not the other is not really explained,

The jury is going to hear about the solicitation in joint or separate trials. It is clear thal

evidence 13 not so prejudicial as 1o prevent a logical analysis of the evidence, considering

Defendant Counts jury was clearly capable of doing so. s

Defendants assert that lingering doubt may be a strategy at penalty. However, sucha

stratecy is precluded from being presented at a penalty hearing. In Browning v, State, 188 |
gy p gp F ¥ 4 ,

P3d 60 (Nev.,,2008), the Nevada Supreme Court specifically rejected the argument the -

tingering doubt is relevant at sentencing! y

The focus of a capital penalty hearing is not the defendant's guilt, but
rather his character, record, and the circumstances of the offense.
Such considerations are relevant to the jury charged with imposing 8
renalty for a capital erime. This principle was altinmed i Qregon v,
%}uz:ekg In Guzek, the United States Supreme Court held that a capital
murder defendant had ne constitational right to present additional
alibi evidence at resentencing thal was inconsistent with s prior
conviction and shed no light oo the manner it which be commuited
the crime for which he was convicied. Although we have not yet

A P;-ﬁ;ffam PilesWrsvia Comieiment Converlertemp 3761 724454582 X
PA0544;
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addressed Gueek, 1 Homuck v, Siate, we held that “thers s no
constitutional mandale for a jury instruction in a capial case making
residual doubt a mitigating circumstance.”  More recently, in
MoKenna v, State, we rejected an argument that the defendant was
entitied 1o a residual dauét jmstruction at lus second penalty hearin
because the sccond jury had not determined his guilt, We rf:asomﬁﬁ
that although “the penalty phase jury was composed of entirely
different jurors than the puilt phase jury, a lingering doubt over [the
defendant’s] guilt is still not an aspect of his chargeter, record, or a
circumstance of the offense.” |

Id at 67. As such, such stratepy cannot be a basis for granting separate trials.
BY 4 E Sep

Defendants ¢laim that inconsistent mitigation evidence could be a basis for severance.
Without even citation 10 any guthority, Defendants assert that they should be able to present
mutually exclusive penalty evidence in separaie trials. For example, Defendants claim they
could present that Defendant Hidalge, Jr. was a good father, while also presenting that
Defendant Hidalgo, I was neglected as a child. As one of those factors must be false, it
would seem that it would end the search for truth in penalty hearings.” el

Defendants claim that ene's choice t© allocae while another may not choose
allocate could somehow affect the decision as to whether or not conduct separate trials.

However, in none of the citations, does Defendant present any case where this 1ssug has been

ruled © be a basis for severance. [ somchow the Court were to determine that ones right 1o

capital case could ever be tried in a single trial. Such 1s not the law, never has buen the law,

and there is no persuasive authority 1o even consider it the law.

CONCLUSIONM

Diefendants have pointed to no particular piece of evidence which would be admitted

or excluded in separate trials. Defendants have made no assertion of what possible
antagonistic defense they wish to present. Even if the defense was antagomstic, thers still
needs to be analysis of the trial right which is being infringed. Al of the other claims do not

justify severance in this specific case. At most, if the Court believed their authority, it would

:

41 would also appear that such @ position would be antagonistic between Defendants, which Mr, Geniile has repeatedly ’
¢laimed that their interests are vot. Hthis is by faet trae, then finger pointing tu either the guilt ov penalty phases should
give rise o the conilic which the Staie bas repeatedly and consistenly hegn cnugerned exists: |

G:.".Fm%am Files\Meavia. ComtiBociment Convertertemp 3761 72-445482. 1430,
PA0545
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y require severance in all capital cases, elearly not the law. Al best, Defendants objections arg
mere conclusory statements which is not sufficient 1o justify separate trials. See White v,
State, 83 Nev, 202 (1967); Aunderson v, State, &1 Wevw, 477 (1965). Jee alse NRS 174,165,

4
4 | Based on the foregoing, tae Sate’s Motion 1o Lonsolidate s L
5 DATED this__15th _day of December, 2008,

Loz

g

G Respectfully submitted,

7 DAVIDROGER
Clark County Digtrict Attorney

8 Nevada Bar #002781

MARUTHCTATOMG
i2 Chief Deputy District Atlorney
Nevads Bar #006955

17 CERTIFICATE OF FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION

|
18 I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing, was made this 15th day of

19§ December, 2008, by facsimile transmission o

i

DOMINIC GENTILE, ESQ, and o
2 PAOLA ARMENI, ESQ. (DEF. HIDALGO, JR.)
369-2665 |

JOHN L. ARRASCADA, ESQ. (DEF. HIDALGO, 0Ty
43 T75-329-1253%

S Daniels
25 Secretary for the Disirict Attorney's Offie
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Jark County District Attorney 7008 am -
Nevada Bar #002781 AN-T P 2 4q
3§ MARC DIGIACOMO P
Chief Deputy District Attorney lZf, gy
4 § Nevada Bar #006953 W ol S /
200 Lewis Avenue LLE 6F THE couay
3 i Las Vegas, Nevada 89135-2211
H(702) 671-2500
& i Attorney for Plaintiff
7
~ DISTRICT COURT
g CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
9
10 | THE STATE OF NEVADA, }
Plaintiff, % Case No. C2413%4
VG- 2 Dept No. XXE
LUIS ALONSO HIDALGO, JR. 2
Detfendant. ;
)
15 )
16 STATE'S MOTION TO REMOVE MR, GENTILE AS ATTORNEY FOR
17 DEFENDANT HIDALGO, JR., OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, TO REQUIRE
P
@ WAIVERS AFTER DEFENDANTS HAVE HAD TRUE INDEPENDENT COUNSEL
19 i TO ADVISE THEM
20 DATE OF HEARING: 1/20/09
TIME OF HEARING: 9:30 A M.
ﬁ COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by DAVID ROGER, District Attorney, through
pc - N S
g = MARC DIGIACOMO, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and files this MOTION TO
&
pon = REMOVE MR, GENTILE AS ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT HIDALGO, JR., OR N
5 T e
% = THE ALTERNATIVE, TO REQUIRE WAIVERS AFTER DEFENDANTS HAVE HAD
TRUE INDEPENDENT COUNSEL TO ADVISE THEM,
27 This Motion is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herem, the
28 | attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argoment at the time of heaning, if
PURPDOCSMOTION ullying & }30\%53&%‘585‘; dog
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I I deemed necessary by this Honorable Court,
2 NOTICE OF HEARING
3 YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned

4 JE will bring the foregoing motion on for setting before the above entitled Court, in Depariment

S XXI1 thereof, on the 20th day of January, 2009, at the hour of 9:30 o'clock AM., or as soon

& | thereafier as counsel may be heard,

7 1 DATED this _6th_day of January, 2009.

Y

g 3

_ “ : DAVID ROGER

9 Clark County District Attorney
0 MNevada Bar #002781

BY A (A4 ;
12 MARC THOIACOMO
Chief Deputy District Attorney

13 Mevada Bar #006955
14
15 PROCEDURAL HISTORY
16 On May 24, 20035, Defendant Luis Hidalgo, 1l and Anabel Espindola were arrested

17 I and charged with Conspiracy to Commit Murder, Murder With Usc of a Deadly Weapon and
18 § two (2) counts of Solicitation to Commit Murder. During the inception of the case, Dominic
19§ Gentile represented the alleged owner of the Palomino Club, Mr. H, however, sought and
20§ paid for attoneys for the two Defendants. On October 9, 2006, Defendants Hidalgo and
21 | Espindola sought relief in the Nevada Supreme Court from the State’s Notice of Intent to
22 ¥ Seek the Death Penalty. The petition on behalf of Luis Hidalgo, {1 was filed by Dominic
23 I Gentile on behalf of Defendant Iidalgo, 111, In response, the State raised the issue of a
24 & potential conflict of interest on the part of Mr. Gentile. (Sce aftached State’s Answer to
25 Petition for Writ of Mandamus, or in the alternative, Writ of Prohibition},

26 On March 28, 2007, the Nevada Supreme Court issued an Order directing that oral

27 | arguments be set in the matter and specifically indicated that Mr. Gentile’s conflict of

28 i interest was to be addressed at the hearing. Pending oral argument, Mr. Gentile filed
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documents under seal with the Court. At oral argument, the Chief Justice indicated that the

issue was resolved by those sealed documents.! However, Mr. Gentile indicated that had

Luis Hidalgo Jr. (“Mr. H”) been arrested, that this issue may have some merit. In Hidalgo v.

District Court, 123 Adv. Op. 59 (2007}, the Court disposed of the contlict issue in footnote

ong by stating:

In response to the State's argument that counsel for petitioner Luis Hidalgo Il
has an impermissible conflict of interest due to his representation of
Hidaleo's father in an unrelated matier, Hidalgo has moved this court to file
ceriain exhibits under seal. Cause appearing, we grant the motion. Based on
the affidavits submitied by Hidalge, his counsel, and Hidalge's father, we
perceive no current or potential conflict sufficient to warrant counsel’s
disgualification at this time. See RPC 1.7. The State may renew its motion
below in the future, however, if such a conthict arises,

(Emphasis added}.

On February 7, 2008, based upon ¢vidence which recently obtained from a previously
unavailable witness, an arrest warrant for Conspiracy to Commit Murder and Murder With
Use of a Deadly Weapon in the killing of Timothy Jay Hadland was issued for Luis Hidalgo,
jr. That same date, he was arrested. On February 11, 2008, Mr. H was arraigned in justice
court and Dominic Gentile confirmed as his attorney of record.

On that same date, the State raised in front of the instant court the issue of M,
Gentile’s actual conflict of interest. This Court has set a hearing for Wednesday, February
13, 2008 at | p.m. to address that issue. On that date, the court began a hearing, a portion of
which was sealed and ex parte. The next date, on Thursday, February 14, 2008, the Court
held another hearing, a part of which the State was excluded from. Thercafter, while the
Court did not make a ruling as to whether or not an actual conflict existed, the Court did find
that valid waivers had been executed for any potential conflict. Thereafter, Mr. Gentile

represented both Defendants.

"' To date, those records remain sealed.
a < . . . . r .
* While the State was not present, if was the impression of the State that any conflict was merely potential and not actual
based upon the representation of counsel.
FAWPDOCSWOTIONOutlying 8RS BRSIA Bisadpe
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Reces{ﬂ;; beginning in November of 2008, some disturbing information came to light
concerning the conflict issue. At the State’s Motion to Consolidate, Mr. Gentile announced
that it would be “more effective” if there was a representation by separate lawyers, Based
upon that representation, new lawyers were found for Defendant Hidalgo, LI, and M,
Gentile continued his representation of Defendant Hidalgo, Jr. This has led to a true
anomaly that Mr. Gentile began his criminal representation of one defendant and mid-casc
switch to the other criminal Defendant. If this was not enough to cause concern, in their
joint opposition to the State’s Motion to Consolidate, Defendants have now asserted that
their defenses are “antagonistic.” Moreover, Defendants asscrt that they may want o present
“inconsistent” mitigation evidence. At the time of the last inguiry, no discussion of the death
penalty was considered as, at the time, the only Notice of Intent To Seek The Death Penalty
was stricken against Defendant Hidalgo, HL

Due to the changing nature of the case, the clear assertion of a conflict, as well as a
concern about the prior waiver, the State moves this Court to remove Mr. Gentile from the
representation of Defendant Hidalgo, Jr. In the alternative, the State’s secks the Court to
appoint truly independent counsel to Defendant Hidalgo, Jr. to completely review the file
and provide advice to Defendant Hidalgo, Jr. Additionally, the State seeks the Court to
acquire a new waiver from Defendant Hidalgo, 1] after consultation with his new counsel,

LEGAL AUTHORITY

While the State recognizes that the Court previously has canvassed the Defendants

concerning the potential conflict and acquired waivers from them, it is clear now that there 1s

simply no question that an actual conflict is present. Based upon that information, there is
Hidalgo, Jr. Absent agreement from the Court, at the very least, a more complete record, as
well as waivers that at least can be arguably sustained, needs to be made. With all due
deference to the prior decision of the Court, the record of the case, most of which was made
after the February 2008 hearing is not nearly complete enough for appropriate review 1o

avoid an automatic reversal should Defendant Hidalgo, Jr. be convicied.

PAWPDIOCSIMOTIONOutlying\ 80\ BOB NG EE°
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Courts have the power to disqualify an attorney from representing a particular client
in order to preserve the integrity of their judgments, maintain public confidence n the
integrity of the bar, eliminate conflicts of interest, and protect confidential communications

between attorneys and their clients. Coles v. Arizona Charlie’s, 973 F.Supp. 971 (Nev.

1997). Any doubts as to the existence of an asserted conflict of interest must be resolved n
favor of disgualification. Coles, 973 F. Supp at 975,

The newly enacted Nevada Rule of Professional Conduct 1.7 states!

(a) Except as provided in paragraph (b}, a lawyer shall not represent a client if

the representation involves a concurrent conflict of interest. A concurrent
conflict of interest exists il

(1} The representation of one client will be directly adverse fo another client,
ar

(2) There is a significant risk that the representation of one or more clients
witl be materially limited by the lawyer’s responsibilities to another client, a
former elient, or a third person or by a personal interest of the lawyer.

{b) Notwithstanding the existence of a concurrent conflict of interest under
paragraph {a), a lawyer may represent a client if:

{1} The lawyver reasonably believes that the lawyer will be able to provide
competent and diligent represeniation of cach atfected client;

2} The representation is not prohibited by law;

o

{3} The representation does not involve the assertion of a claim by one client
against another client represented by the lawyer in the same litigation or other
proceeding before a tribunal; and

(4} Each affected client gives informed consent, confirmed in writing.
Additionally, Rule 1.10 of the Nevada Rules of Professional Conduct deals with the

“Imputation of Conllicts of Interest” by stating:

(a) While lawyers are associated in a firm, none of them shall knowingly
represent a client when any one of them practicing alone would be
Frﬂhihii‘ed from doeing 3¢ by Rules 1.7, 1.9, or 2.2, unless the prohibition is
sased- i a personal interest of the prohibited lawyer and does not present a
significant risk of materially limiting the representation of the client by the
remaining lawyers in the {irm.

It is well settled that a Defendant is entitled to the effective assistance of counsel.

Strickland v. Washingion, 466 1.5, 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052 (1984}, Counsel is presumed {0 be

ineffective where he is burdened by an actual conflict of interest. 1d. at 689 {emphasis

PAWPDOCSMOTION Qutlying BROBRESARSRIES
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1§ added). The Court went on 1o say!
2 In those circumatances. counsel breaches the dutv of lovaltv. perhans the maost
1& hasic of counsel’s duties. Moreover. it is diffienlt to measure the nrecise effect
3 on the defense of renresentation corranied by conflicting interests. {7iven the
ohlieation of counsel to avoid comflicts of interest and the abilitv of trial courts
4 toy make early inauiry in certain situations Hkelv (0 give rise o conflicts. see.
e.e.. Fﬂed.{hﬂe Crim. Proc. 44(c). it is reasonable {or the criminal wistice svsiem
3 ter maintain a fairly rigid rule of presumed prejudice for conflicts of interest,
Id T P
6 el
Courts have imposed a duty on triaf courts, when alerted by objection from one of the
“¥
H TRT
parties, to ensure that criminal defendants receive a trial that is fair and does not contravene
8
the Sixth Amendment. Wheat v, United States, 486 U.S. 153, 108 S.Ct. 1692 (1988);
9
(lasser v. United States, 315 U.S. 60 (1942). Because of the potential for later ineffective
10
assistance of counsel claims which may arise from the granting of a defendants request for
I
multiple represematianf the Supreme Court held that where a court justifiably finds an
12
actual conflict of interest, it may decline a proffer of waiver, and insist that defendants be
13
represented separately.  Wheat v, United States, 486 U.S. at 162, “To preserve the
i4
protection of the Bill of Rights for hard-pressed defendant, we indulge every reasonable
i3
presumption against the waiver of fundamental rights.” Id. citing Glasser, supra.  As the
i
Court aptly noted:
17
| When a trial court finds an actual conflict of interest which imnairs the ahility
I8 of the criminal defendant’s chose counsel to conform with the ABA Code of
Professional Responsibilitv, the court should not bhe reouired {o tolerate an
19 inadecuate renresentation of the defendant.  Such renresentation not nnlv
constitutes a hreach of srofessional ethics and invites disresnect for the
24 integrity of the court. but it is also detrimental to the indenendent inferest of
. i the trial indee to be free from future atiacks over the adeauacv of the waiver or
21 the fairness of the nroceedines in his own court and the subtle problems
7 implicating the defendant’s comprehension of the waiver,
In Wheat, the Supreme Court noted that the same lawyer could not represent both
23
parties as either parly may have an incentive to either testify agamst the other, or present a
24 _
defense antagonistic to the point of being “mutually exclusive” between the parties.”
25
in Koza v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court, 99 Nev. 5335, 663 P.2d 244 {1983), The
.“'F.l“’
26
27
P Citing Lnited States ex eel Tonaidi v. Blrad, 716 F.2d 431 (CA7 1983); United States v. Yowieras, 500 F.2d 121}
28§ (CA2),
¥ For a definition of antagonistic defenses which are “mutually exclusive,” see Marshall v. State, 118 Nev. 642, 56 P.3d
376 (2002
¢ PAWPDOCSIMOTICN Outlying\ $BOSBISAESHe
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Nevada Supreme Court put the onus on the counsel representing more than one Defendant
by quoting the American Bar Association n saving:

The potential for cenflict of interest in representing multiple defendants 15 so
grave that ordinarily a lawyer should decline to act for more than one of
several co-defendanys except in unusual situations when, after careful
investigation, it is clear that no conflict s likely to develop and when the
several defendants give an informed consent to such multiple representation.

Id. {(emphasis added).
In Clark v, State, 108 Nev. 324, 831 P.2d 1374 {1992), the Court noted that in arcas

of conflict there are “certain limited instances” where “a defendant is relieved of the
responsibility of establishing the prejudicial effect of his counsel's actions. An actual conflict
of interest which adversely affects a lawyer's performance will resull in a presumprion of
prejudice 1o the defendant.” Id., citing Strickland; Cuyler v. Sullivan, 446 U.5. 335, 100
S.Ct. 1708, 64 L.Ed.2d 333 {1980); Mannon v. Siate, 98 Nev. 224, 226, 645 P.2d 433, 434

(1982). The Court went on to say that “this exception is based, in part, on the difficulty in
measuring the effect of representation tainted by conflicting interests.” 1d,, citing Strickiand,
466 U8, a1 692, 104 5.Cu. at 2067,

In Harvey v. State, 96 Nev, 830, 619 P.2d 1214 (1980), the court reiterated the clear

fact that “[e]very defendant has a constitutional right to the assistance of counsel unhindered

1L.Ed.2d 426 (1978). The Court noted the obvious danger of an improper conflict in a single
attorney representing co-defendants by stating “{r]epresentation of multiple detendants by a
single attorney is fraught with the risks of conflict, and should be approached with caution

by the parties, counsel and the trial court.” Id,, citing United States v. Lawriw, 568 F.2d 98

{8th Cir. 1977). The Court quoted the Supreme Court of Minnesota® by quoting:

The inherent difficulty which faces any attorney who undertakes the joint
representation of codefendants is that he or she must simultanecusly balance
the interests of each defendant against each other. Not only must the attorney
of codefendants defend against the prosecution, but he or she must also defend
against conflicts between the defendants themselves. 1d.

The Harvey Court points out many of the more obvious risks of the jom

: Ciring State v, Olsen, 258 N, W .2d 838 (Minn. 1977}

PAWPROCSIMOTICNCutlying 8BOE BIBATSR:
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representation of co-defendants, including, “the possibility of inconsistent pleas; factually
inconsistent alibis; conflicts in testimony; differences in degree of involvement in the crime;
tactical admission of evidence; the calling, cross-examination, and impeachment of
witnesses; strategy in final argument; and the possibility of guilt by association.” Id,

————

In Cuvier v. Sullivan, 100 S.Ct. 1708, 64 L.Ed.2d 333 (1980), two defendanis were

represented by the same attorneys. The defendants were tried separately. The Supreme Court
held that the Sixth Amendment does not require state couris fo initiate inguiries info the
propriety of multiple representation in every case. However, the Court indicated that an
inquiry is reguired when the trial court “knows or reasonably should know that a particular
conflict exists.” {d. at -, 100 8.Ct. at 1717, The court also held that a defendant who raised
no objection at trial may demonstrate a Sixth Amendment violation if an actual conflict of
interest adversely effected his lawyer's performance.

ANALYSIS

i. THIS COURT MUST DECLINE ANY WAIVER AND

DISQUALIFY ATTORNEY GENTILE BECAUSE THERE 15
AN ACTUAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The mandate to decline such a waiver comes from the highest court of this nation. In

Wheat v. United States, 486 U.S. 153, 108 S.Ct. 1692 (1988), the precise issue before the

Supreme Court was essentially the issue before this Court: whether the trial court should

decline a defendant’s waiver of his right to conflict-free counsel and refuse to permit the

a—

Originally, attorney Eugene Iredale represented defendants Gomez-Barajas and Javier
Bravo. Id. at 158, 108 5.Ct at 1695, Defendant Gomez-Barajas was tried first and acquitted
on some charges, but later pled guilty to tax evasion and illegal importation of merchandise
to avoid a second trial on other charges. Id. Co-defendant Bravo pled guilty to a single
count. 1d. Accordingly, the cases against Gomez-Barajas and Bravo were concluded prior
to the trial of & third defendant. Id.

Attorney Iredale then sought to represent a third defendant, co-defendant Mark

PAWPLOCSMOTIONGutlying 3 BN B8bAHEG)pC
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- gven though co-defendant Bravo's case was concluded - - would become untenable, for
ethical proscriptions would forbid him to cross-examine Bravo in any meaningful way. Id.
By failing to do 50, he would also fail to provide defendant Wheat with effective assistance
and Bravo and the potential for serious conflict of interest, the Government urged the trial
court to reject the substitution of aftorneys. Id.

In response, Wheat emphasized his right to have counsel of his own choice and the
willingness of Gomez-Barjas, Bravo and Wheat 1o waive the right to conflict-free counsel.
1d. Wheat argued that the circumstances posited by the Government that would creaie a

attorney {redale to represent Wheat and to waive any future claims of conflict of mterest. Id.

In Wheat’s view, the Government was manufacturing implausible contlicts in an attempt to

disqualify attorney Iredale, who had already proved extremely effective in representing

Gomez-Barajas and Bravo. Id at 157, 108 S5.Ct. at 1696,

The trial court refused to accept the waiver of conflict and denied Wheat’s request to

substitute attorney lIredale as attorney of record. Id. Wheat proceeded to trial and was

convicied of numerous drug distribution crimes. 1d.

The Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit affirmed Wheat's conviclions, 1d. The
Ninth Circuit found that the trial court had correctly balanced two Sixth Amendment rights:
(1) the qualified right 1o be represented by counsel of one’s choice; and (2) the right to a
defense conducted by an attorney who is free of conflicts of interest. Id. Denial of either of
these rights threatened the District Court with an appeal assigning the ruling as reversible
error. ld.

Hecause the various Courts of Appeal had expressed substantial disagreement about

PAWPDOCSHMOTIONW utlyingd SBOSBISAYEipe
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Supreme Court recognized that

...while the right to select and be represented by one’s preferred
attorney is comprehended by the Sixth Amendment, the essentiaf
aim of the Amendment is to guaraniee an effective advocate for

eqch criminal defendant rather than o ensure that a defendant
will inexorably be represented by the lawyer whom he prefers.

id. at 159, 108 8.Ct. at 1697 (citations omitted) {emphasis added). Moreover, the Supreme
Court rejected Wheat's argument that the provision of waivers by all affected defendants

cured any problem created by the multiple representation. Id. at 139, 108 S.Ct. at 1697,

[Nlo such flat rule can be deduced from the Sixth Amendment
presumption in favor of counsel of choice, Federal courts have
an independent interest in ensuring that criminal trials are
conducted within the ethical standards of the profession and that
legal proceedings appear fair to all who observe them.

Id., 108 §.Ct. at 1698.° Significantly, the United States Supreme Court acknowledged that a
waiver does not necessarily solve yet another problem created by successive representation:
the “apparent willingness of Courts of Appeal fo entertain ineffective assistance clajms
from defendants who have specifically waived the right to conflict-free counsel” Id. at
162, 108 8.Ct. at 1699 {citations omitied) (emphasis added).

In light of the plethora of issues created by successive multiple representation, the
Supreme Couft held that “where a court justifiably finds an aciual conflict of interest, there
can be no doubt that it may decline a proffer of waiver and insist that defendants be |
separately represented.” Id. at 162, 108 5.Ct. at 1699 (citations omiited).

When a trial court finds an actual conflict of interest which
impairs the ability of a criminal defendant’s chosen counsed to
conform with the ABA Code of Professional Responsibility, the
court should not be reguired to tolcrate an  inadequate
representation of a defendant. Such representation not only
constitutes a breach of professional ethics and mnvites disrespect
for the inmtegrity of the court, but it is also detrimental to the
independent inferest of the trial judge to be free from future
attacks over the adeguacy of the walver or the faimess of the
proceedings in his own court and the subtle problems implicating

® “The Court alse acknowledged that both the American Bar Association’s Modei Code of Professional Responsibility
and fts Mode! Rules of Professional Conduct impoese Himitations on multiple representation of clients.
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tne defendant’s comprehension of waiver.
Id. at 162, 108 8.C1. at 1699 (citations omitied).
The Court went on to explain the unenviable position in which a trial court {inds
iself when faced with this issue, particularly when attempting to forccast the potential
problems associated with successive representation of chients.

Unfortunately for all concerned, a district court must pass on the
issue whether or not to allow a waiver of conflict of interest by a
criminal defendant not with the wisdom of hindsight afier the
irial has taken place, but in the murkier pre-trial context when
relationships between parties are seen through a glass, darkly.
The likelihood and dimensions of nascent conllicts of interest are
notoriously hard to predict, even for those thoroughly famihar
with criminal trials.

Id. at 162-163, 108 5.Ct a1 16989,
Similarly, the Court described the problems posed to the criminal defense attorney

who undertak€s successive representation of defendants on the same case,

It is a rare attorney who will be fortunate enough to learn the
entire truth from his own client, much less be fully apprised
before trial of what each of the Government’s witnesses will say
on the stand. A few bits of unforeseen testimony or a single
previously unknown or unnoticed document may significantly
shift the relationship between multiple defendants.  These
imponderables are difficult enough for a lawyer io assess, and
even more difficult to convey by way of explanation 0 a
criminal defendant untutored in the niceties of legal ethics. Nor
is it amiss to observe that the willingness of an attorney to obtain
such waivers from his clients may bear an inverse relation to the
L;:?I‘ﬁ with which he conveys all the necessary information to
them.

id. at 163, 108 5.C1. at 1698, Consequently, the Supreme Court acknowledged that it must
defer to the trial courts in refusing waivers of conllicts of interest.

For these reasons, we think the district court must be allowed
substantial latitude in refusing waivers of conflicts of inferest not

ccnly in those rare cases where an acfua! conilict may be
demonstrated before trial, but in the more common cases where a
potential for conflict exists which may or may rot burgeon mito
an actual conflict as the wial progresses.

Id. at 163, 108 5.Ct. at 1699 {emphasis added). Thus, the United States Supreme Court held
that the lower court’s refusal to permit substitution of counsel in Wheat’s case was within s
discretion and did nof violate Wheat’s Sixth Amendment righis. Id. at 164, 108 8.C0 at
1700,
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The Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals has also addressed the waiver-of-contlict issue

cert, denied Stites v. U.S., 516 U.S. 1138, 116 S.Ct. 967 (1996), defendant Lynn Stiles was

convicted of numercus counts of RICO and mail fraud violations. On appeal, Stites argued
that the trial court improperly disqualified two lawyers he wanted to represent him, including
attorney Juanita Brooks. Stites, 56 F.3d at 1022,

Attorney Brooks had previously represented Stites’s co-defendant, Cheryl Dark. Id.
at 1022, B}a" iée time Stites went to trial, however, the case involving his co-defendant had
concluded; the co-defendant had entered a plea and was sentenced. Id. at [022-1023. The
co-defendant also waived her attormey-client privilege regarding her communications with
Attorney Brooks who now sought to represent Stites. Id. at 1023,

The trial judge expressed concern about the voluntariness of the co-defendant’s

waiver. Id. at 1023. Attorney Brooks said she would meet that problem by not cross-

examining the co-defendant if the co-defendant testified at Stites’s trial; instead, co-counsel

would do the cross-examination, and a “Chinese wall” would prevent any communication
from Atlorney Brooks to co-counsel who would handle the cross-examination of the former
client. Igd. at 1023. Finally, attorney Brooks argued that she was familiar with the facts of
the complex case, which somehow necessitated her involvement as trial counsel. Id. at 1043,

The Ninth Circuit recognized the presumption that a criminal defendant may have
counsel of his choice if he can pay for it and counsel is willing. Id. at 1024, citing Wheat v,

United States, 486 U.S. 153, 164, 108 5.Ct. 1692, 1699-1700 (1988). The presumphion,

however, may be overcome by even “a showing of a serious potential for conflict of
interest.” Id. (emphasis added). The Ninth Circuit found that there was not only serious
potential for conflict but actual conflict of interest, and Stites failed to show good cause that
the conflict was unlikely (o continue. Id. at 1025.

An actual conflict existed because Attorney Brooks had represented the co-defendant

in the same case in which she now sought to represent Stites. Id. at 1025, Auorney Brooks

was bound by her duty to her former client not to enter into a relation where she would,
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I I almost by necessity, have to draw on knowledge she had obtained in the carlier
representation of the co-defendant. 1d. The co-defendant tried to waive the duty; however,

the Ninth Circuit relied on the U.8. Supreme Court’s holding in Wheat: where a district

i

4 ¥ cour finds an acrual conflict, there can be no doubt that it may decline a proffer of waiver,

5 I Id. at 1025, cifing Wheat v, United States, 486 ULS. 153 at 162, 108 §.C1L. at [698-1699.

The appellate court also expressed skepticism regarding Attorney Brooks’s remedy:

her pledge to keep the confidences and set up a “Chinesc wall.” The district court was under

6

7

8 I no necessity 1 accept the unusual arrangement which was virtually impossible lo monitor,
9 H and the “Chinese wall” might have crumbled. [d. at 1025, Based on the actual conflict of
0

interest, as well as the insufficient “Chinese wall” remedy, the Court rejected the defendant’s

11§ claim that attorney Brooks was improperly disqualified from representing defendant. Id.

i2 Likewise, i U.5. v, Shwavder, 312 F.34 1109 (ch Cir. 2002), opinion amended on

13 | denial of rehearing by U.S. v. Shwavder, 320 F. 3d 889 (8" Cir. 2003), cert. denied

14 Ia Shwayder v. U.8., 124 S.Ct. 181 (2003), the Ninth Circuit refused to accept a waiver of 8

15§ conflict of interest. In that case, attorney John Schiie initially represented defendant Swan
16 § concerning a grand jury investigation that resulted in a 110-count indictment. Id. at 1113.

17 § Later, attorney John Schlic was retained by Swan’s co-defendant, Shwayder, to represent

18 § Shwayder at trial on the same matter. Id. at 1113-1114, Attorney Schlie obtained Swan’s

19 § permission to represent Shwayder, and both Swan and Shwayder signed waivers. Id. at

20 | 1114. Despite the waiver, Shwayder, following his conviction, argued that his trial counsel’s

II former representation of Swan ¢reated an actual conflict of interest. Id. at 1117,

21
22 The Ninth Circuit noted that Shwayder’s waiver of his conilict of nterest was no?
23 | valid. Id. at 1117. Moreover, because Shwayder was never adequately informed of the

24 | significance of the various conflicts that might arise from attorney Schhie’s former
25 | representation of Swan, Shwayder did not waive his right to conflict-free counsel. Id. at

26 { 1117. Finally, the Court addressed whether there was an actual conflict of interest,

“¥ N “ o e . e
27 In successive representations, conflicts of interest may arise if

the cases are substantially related or if the altorney reveals
A privileged communications of the former client or otherwise

divides his lovalties. [citation omitted] One of the risks ¢reated
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i by successive representation is that rhe atiorney who fas

! obtained privileged information from the former client may Jail

. to conduct @ rigorous cross-examination [of that chient] for fear

< 4§ of misusing that confidential information. jcitation omitted]

3 4 1d. at 1118 {(emphasis added). Applying these standards, the appellate court concluded there
4 I was, in fact, an acfug! conflict of inlerest. Attorney Schlie represented Swan (former client)
5 1 in matters directly connected to the trial. Id. at 1118, The conflict grew greater when Swan

6 § apreed to plead guilty and testify against Shwayder. 1d. By inquiring into certain areas on

-

cross-examination concerning matters on which he had previously represented Swan,
8 I attorney Schlie could have breached his duty of lovalty to Swan - - or at least feared that he
§ § would appear to do so and, therefore, avoided certain areas of inquiry. Id.

0 The Nevada Supreme Court has also expressed concern over successive multiple

i1 | representation. In Koza v, Bighth Judicia] District Court, 99 Nev, 535, 665 P.2d 244 (1983},

12 § defendant Maggie Koza was charged with murder. She was represented by the Clark County
13 § Public Defender’s Office. Id. at 536-337. Defendant Koza sought to have the Public
14 § Defender’s Office disqualified due to a conflict of interest; the Public Defender’s Office
16 § the Public Defender’s motion 10 be disgualified as Koza’s counsel, and Koza sought relief
17 ¥ viaan extraordinary writ from the Nevada Supreme Court.

1% The Nevada Supreme Court determined that extraordinary intervention was warranted

19 # and that there was no plain, speedy or adequate remedy at faw. Id. at 337, The Court was

20 H also mindful of the warning contained in American Bar Association’s Standards Relating to
21 | the Administration of Criminal Justice, The Defense Function. The Court concluded that the
22 | public defender’s office had a conflict between its duty to provide vigorous representation to
23 || Koza and its duty not to disclose any statements made by its former client. Id. at 5339, The
24 | Court recognized that the public defender must also aveid acting adversely to its former
25 I client. Id. Consequently, the Nevada Supreme Court found that the trial court acted
26 | arbitrarily and capriciously in appointing the Public Defender to represent Koza, and that
27 | there was a considerable risk of irreparable harm in requiring counsel to proceed to tnal on

28 I Koza’s behalf, 1d. at 540-541. Accordingly, the Court ordered the issuance of a writ of

rrrrrr
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2§ disqualified as counsel. Id. at 341,
3 In Carter v. State, 102 Nev, 164, 717 P.2d 1111 {1986}, the Nevada Supreme Court

4 | addressed the precise concerns expressed by the U.S. Supreme Court in Wheat! in cases
5§ involving multiple representation on the same case, the likelihood and dimensions of nascent
6 || conflicts of interest are notoriously hard to predict, cven for those thoreughly familiar with
7 | criminal trials. In Carter, defendants Oliver Carter and Robert Holding were charged with
8 | embezziement. Id at 165, 717 P.2d at 1111, Both defendants elected to be represented by
9 | attorney Kevin Kelly. [d. Attorney Kelley discussed with the two defendants the possibility
0 I of a conflici of interest arising out of the dual representation, both defendants told the
11 4 attorney they were content to be represented by him, and both defendants formally
12 1' acknowledged their acceptance of dual representation. Id. Later, the trial judge expressed a
concern about the potential conflict, the defendants were again canvassed, and the

3
14§ defendants waived their right to conflict-free counsel. 1d. at 166, 717 P.2d at 1112,

13 Mevertheless, during the trial, an issue arose regarding the admission of a document
16 § which “‘raise{d] a complete conflict” between the defendants. fd. Consequently, the irtal
17 1§ judge was forced to declare a mistrial, noting that “an appeliate court would reverse this for
18 §| the conflict that will occur in representing both of these defendants...”. Id. at 168, 717 P.2d

19 §f at 1113, The Nevada Supreme Court agreed:

20 | We recognize that a defendant may waive the rnight to conflici-
free representation. [citation omitted] The right of waiver,
21 kiowever, cannot preclude a trial cour! from decloving a
o mistrial when there is 3 manifest mecessity for doing se.
£ Although defendants were repeatedly canvassed concerning
vy | ostensible conflict, their statements are rather clearly tied 1o the
23 advice of their mutual counsel and to the trust they have placed
in that counsel. Such statements must be received with caution
24 and in the context of other factors inherent in the dual
representation, factors which are more palpable by the trial judge
25 than anyone else.
26§ Id. at 170, 717 P.2d at 1114 {emphasis added); see also Haves v. State, 106 Nev. 343, 797
27 T1 P.2d 962 {during the course of trial, actual conflicts may arise which are of a much greater
28 | type, magnitude, or frequency than the potential conflicts of interest foreseen at the time of
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1 I the waiver of conflici-free counsel and the court may be justified in setting aside the

2 watvers).

3 In the instant case, this Court must decline any waivers proffered by Delendant
4 | Hidalgo, Il and Hidalgo, Ir. There is an actual conflict because attorney Gentile represented
5 I both clients. See, Stites, 56 F.3d at 1025 {actual conflict because attorney Brooks previously
& | represented former co-defendant). Attorneys Gentile is bound by his duty to each respective
7 4 client, even if that position would be adverse to the other respective co-defendant.” Even if
§ I Defendant Hidalgo, IIT and Defendant Hidalgo, Jr. attempt 1o waive the confhct, however,
G | there can be no doubt that this court should decline a proffer of waiver. See Wheat, 486 U5,

10§ at 162 {recognizing that courts should decline waivers based on actual conflicts of interest).

i “ Here, as in Wheat, Stites, and Shwayder, there is a subsiantial concern that attorney Gentile

12 1§ would have to take a position adverse to the co-defendant who was represented by Mr.
13 | Gentile. Attorney Gentile may, in the interest of zealously advocating for each respective

14 1 client, take a position that would incriminate the other client. By failing o do so, attormney

15 || Gentile would fail to provide his client with effective assistance of counsel, :
16 EE Here, as in Harvey, it is impossible to predict what issues might arise during the

17 | course of trial if this Court permits Defendant Hidalgo, [Tl and Defendant Hidalgo, Jr. to be

18 l represented by the same lawyer. For instance:

19 If Defendant Hidalgo, 1 elects to testify on his own behalf, then his lawyer

20 would be preciuded from asking guestions which implicate Defendant Hidalgo,

21 Jr.  Moreover, Defendant Hidalgo may need to for go a defense which

22 implicates his father when a witness will discuss conversations between

23 Defendant Hidalgo, I and Defendant Hidalgo, Jr.

24 The above-cited examples are only the tip of the iceberg in terms of issues that might

25 # arise during tnal,

" “The conflict between Defendant Hidalgo, 111 and Mr. H is inherent and readily identifiable. A witness has provided
28 information where Defendant Hidalgo, HI would have to for go the defense that it was his father that ordered the murder
without his knowledge, and Mr, H would have 1o for go the defense that he mercly paid the money to Defendant Carroll
io protect his sen. (See attached arrest report).
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Even if Defendant Hidalgo,lll and Mr. H’s proffered waivers which arguably waive
these issues, Attorney Geniile's representation of could nevertheless result in a mustrial, See

Carter v, State, 102 Nev. 164 (the right of waiver cannot preclude a trial court from declaring

a mistrial when there is 2 manifest necessity for doing so). Finally, if this Court accepts the
respective waivers, it is providing either Defendant with a built-in ineffective assistance of

counsel argument before am appellate court. See Shwayder, 320 F.3d at 1117 (the

attorney who has obtained privileged information from the former client may fail to conduct
a rigorous cross-cxamination of that client).

Recentdy, in Ryan v, Eighth Judicial Dist. Court, 168 P.3d 703 (Nev. 2007), the Court

addressed this issue both procedurally and on the merits. While attorney Gentile has
represented that Rvan is controlling, it does not automatically mean that representation must

be allowed, Specifically, the Court stated:

However, the right to choose one's own counsel may clash with the
right to conflict-free representation, and the presumption in favor of the right
to choose one's counsel *may be overcome not only by a demonstration of
actual conflict but by a showing of a serious potential for conflict.” The
district court is afforded broad discretion in making conflict
determinations, and the disirict court must be allowed substantial latitude
in_refusing waivers of conflicis of inferest not only in those rarg cases
where an actual conflict mav be demonstrated before trial, but in the
more common cases where a potential for conflict exists which may or
mav not burgeon into an actual conflict as the frial progresses,

______

1d at 708 {(emphasis added). Unlike Rvan, in the instant case, this is simply the rare case
where an actual conflict of interest has arisen. Morcover, it is clearly one of those cases
where the potential for conflict is so great, that the continued representalion by atiorney

Gentile cannot be allowed. Finally, while Ryan overruled Haves v. State, 106 Nev, 343, 797

2d 962 (1990). that a potential conflict may not give rise to a mistrial, it did nothing to
change an actual conflict.
I, EVEN IF THE COURT CHOOSES NOT TO REMOVE MR, GENTILE, THE PRIOK
WAIVERS ARE NCT SUFFICIENT TO PROTECT THE RECORD
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Fven if this Court were to consider a waiver of these rights, it may not do so until
independent counsel has advised both clients so the Court can determing that any waiver was
knowing, wi’ﬁi‘itary? and intelligent. Id at 710. This has vet to be accomplished properly.
As an initial starting point, during the previcus hearing, there were several different facts
before the Court. First and foremost, Mr, Gentile actively asserted that there was no actual
conflict of interest. Such an asscrtion not belied by the record. First, Mr. Gentile has at least
acknowledged that it would be more “effective” for separate counsel to represent the various
interests.  However, interestingly, he did not remain counsel for his original criminal
defendant, but switched representation to a new criminal defendant. In a joint motion to
oppose severance, Mr. Gentile and Defendant Hidalgo, 11l new counsel have represented that
their defenses are antagonistic. Morcover, at the time of the last waiver, neither case was
capital.  As such, there was never a discussion of antagomistic mitigation evidence,
Attorney’s for both Defendants have no asserted that their evidence in a penally phase may
be antagonistic. In essence, by definition, without ever saying it directly, Mr. Gentile must
be now acknowledging an actual conflict of interest.

Moreover, in order for any waiver to be valid, the “independent counsel” 1s supposed
to ensure that the Defendants waiver was knowing, voluniary and intelligent. There 15
simply no suggestion that either “independent counse!” had enough working knowledge of
the case to effectively communicate to their clients, As for Defendant Hidalgo, Jr.’s lawyer,
the situation was even more disturbing. The “independent counsel” wasn’t anything close to
being independent. It is undisputed that before advising Defendant Hidalgo, Jr. on his
waiver, Attorney Cristalli met with Anabel Espindola, a co-defendant which everyone would
agree has adverse interest to Defendant Hidalgo, Jr., in an effort to get her to retain him as
her counsel. How could he now be relied upon {o give proper advise to Defendant Hidaige,
Ir.? Additionally, there is simply no record that the “independent counsel” had access 1o all
the dismve}é‘f, had spent reasonable time in consultation with their clients, and were them
sclves of enough knowledge to properly advise their clients on the intricate level of potential

pitfalls from the representation.
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As to Defendant Hidalgo, 11, the lawyer whe was “independent counsel” at no point
during any of the record that the State is able to access, ever indicated that they had a
complete knowledge of the case and could properly advise their client about the conflict.
Moreover, there is simply no evidence that these lawyers considered the implications of a
waiver in a capital case where there may be “antagonistic mitigation” evidence. However, 1f
the Court decides not to remove Mr. Gentile, then at the very least, Defendant Hidalgo, 1l
now has independent lawvers who have intimate knowledge of the case. If Defendant
Hidalgo, 11 is desirous of filing a new waiver, then at least they could be considered
“independent counsel” for this purpose,

CONCLUSION

In the present case there is an gch! conflict of interest and it is impossible to predict
what other serious potential conflicts may arise during the trial.  As such, attorney Gentile
should be disqualified from representing either Defendant Hidalgo, Jr. However, should the
Court seck to review waivers, it should first appoint independent attorneys to review the
consequences of dual representation with both Defendant Hidalgo, Jr., and require Defendant
Hidalgo, 111 1o re-execute after advise from his new lawyers, before considering whether any
walver is knowing, voluntary, and inteliigent

DATED this i~ day of January, 2009,

DAVID ROGER

Clark County Distnict Attorney
MNevada Bar #002781

P
R A

- L
MARC DIGLACONOD
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #006955
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I hereby certify that service of the above and forgoing, was made this 6th day of

January, 2009, by facsimile transmission to:

L W

Dominic Gentile, BEsqg. & Paolo Arment, Esq.
FAX: 369-2660
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BY /s/ Deana Daniels -
Emplovee of the District Attorney's Ulice
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DAVID ROGER Sy
Clark County District Attorney L
Nevada Bar #002781 QEPUTY
MARC DIGIACOMO

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #006935

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, NV 89135-2212
(702 671-2500 B
Adtorney for Plaintiff

BDISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plamntift,
| )

) Case Nao, C212687/C241394

LUIS HIDALGO, 1, ' Demt No, XX

#1849634 % "

and j

LIS HIDALGO, IR. )

HI1XTGA22 )
}

Diefendanis.

ORDER GRANTING THE STATE'S Réi%ﬁ%(é%& TO CONSOLIDATE C241394 INTQ

DATE OF HEARING: 1/16/2009
TIME OF HEARING: 930 AM.

THIS MATTER having come on for hearing before the above entiled Court on the
16th day of January, 2009, the Defendants being present, represented by John Arrascada for
represented by DAVID ROGER, District Attorney, through MARC DIGLACOMO, Chief
Deputy Dhstrict Attomney, and the Court having heard the arguments of counsel and good
cause appearing therefor,

i
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IT 15 HEREBY ORDERED that the STATE'S MOTION TO CONSOLIDATE
241394 INTO C212667, shall be, and 1t 18 Granted.

DATED this 16th day of January, 2009.
a
k""“&Z;éLU.AiL, Ck(g Cann_ *

DAVID ROGER
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #002781

L

W{D@AQQMQ
Chiefl Deputy District Attomey
Nevada Bar #006955
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DAVID ROGER ERK OF THF COlg “r
Clark County District Attorney

Nevada Rar #002781 mg:;:amy
MARC DIGIACOMO

Chief Deputy District Attomey
Nevada Bar #006933

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89135.2212
{702y 6712300

Attorney for Plamtff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, }
Plaintiff, % CASENO: (241394
| DEPT NO:  XXI
=48 )
LUIS HIDALGO, IR, §
41579522 g
)
Defendant. :

{, LUIS HIDALGO, IR, knowingly and voluntarily, with the advice of counsel, do
hereby waive my right to the trial jury imposing sentence should [ be convicted of First
Degree Murder,

Dated this 16" day of January, 2009,

il f'f}i f ]
e

Aimmav for E)efaﬂdam Chief T)e[:niw -D'ngtraft Attomey
\zfz‘s ada Bar #6935
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TRAN "1~ FILED
OR'G'NAL | NOV 2 4 2009
DISTRICT COURT c%éé&%

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, CASE NO. C212667
DEPT. XXI

VvS.

9\
LUIS ALONSQO HIDALGO Il and LUIS C g\\"h 27

HIDALGO, JR.,

Detendants.

BEFORE THE HONORABLE VALERIE ADAIR, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
THURSDAY, JANUARY 29, 2009
RECORDER’'S TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING RE:

JURY TRIAL
APPEARANCES:
FOR THE STATE: MARC P. DIGIACOMO, ESQ.
GIANCARLO PESCI, ESQ.
Deputy District Attorneys
FOR LUIS HIDALGO lil: JOHN L. ARRASCADA, ESQ.

CHRISTOPHER W. ADAMS, ESQ.

FOR LUIS HIDALGO, JR: DOMINIC P. GENTILE, ESQ.
PAOLA M. ARMENI, ESQ.

RECORDED BY: JANIE L. OLSEN, COURT RECORDER HCEIVED

JRP TRANSCRIBING NOV 2 4 2003

702.635.0301 CLERX OF
-1- THE mPAOS?l
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chew my leg off when | do this, but | just think it's the right thing to do. We are
going to file with the Court at this point our trial memorandum.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. GENTILE: It is redacted. What | did was, those things that | did not
want to reveal in terms of our -- our defense theory and certain facts, | have
redacted by highlighting them in black so that they can'’t be read.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GENTILE: There’s never been an impression on here, so you won't
be able to see it at all. And | will serve one on the State right now. How many do
you need for your file?

THE COURT: Obviously -- Mr. Adams, do you have a copy of the brief?

MR. ADAMS: I'm fine. I'll -- I'll waive.

THE COURT: You've seen it and -- all right.

(Off-record colloquy)

MR. DIGIACOMO: Can we address something? It doesn’t have to be --

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. DIGIACOMOQ: -- on the record, but --

MS. ARMENI: Are we on the record?

THE RECORDER: We are.

THE COURT: We are right now.

MR. DIGIACOMO: | think there needs to be two rulings before my
opening as | was putting it together last night. So one of which | think maybe the
subject of one of the portions of his brief according to Mr. Gentile, the other one
is something we've already erased. And I'd just tell the Court generally what they

are, not that you need to discuss them now, but | do need between the time of

JRP TRANSCRIBING
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your ruling and the time you actually require me to open, approximately an hour
depending on what your ruling is as to one of those motions.

And the first is whether or not the position of Louis Hidalgo il is,
because | think | know what Mr. Louis Hidalgo, Jr.’s position is, to the statements
of Deangelo Carroll on the wire. | am offering the wires under Tannenbaum, and
when we did this in Counts we instructed the jury you cannot consider the
statements of Deangelo Carroll for the truth of the matter asserted.

And Mr. Gentile’s, | believe, position is is that he is using them for
impeachment only. | don't know what Louis Hidalgo III's position is. Thereis a
statement by Deangelo Carroll that says something to the effect of what are you
worried about, Louie, you didn’t have anything to do with it.

Now, if they're offering it for the truth of the matter asserted, that's
fine, but that will change the nature of the way the evidence comes in if they're
off -- if they're saying that that's used for impeachment of the other statements of
Deangelo Carroll that's coming in. That's different.

It's kind of a complex legal issue, but it -- the State shouldn't be
hampered from addressing the -- the issue of the jury during openings and not
have the defense stand up and go, well, Deangelo Carroll didn't do it. If that's
the case, then | -- | want to be able to address the substance of that statement in
my opening.

MR. GENTILE: Okay. And to respond to that, it is Mr. Hidalgo, Jr.’s
position, as | stated last week, that nothing in that tape should be admitted to him
as to him at all, period, because it is not a furtherance of the conspiracy that --
and we've been through that.

THE COURT: No, | know.

JRP TRANSCRIBING
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MR. GENTILE: Okay. Separate and apart from that, if you do admit it, if
you do make that decision, then as a matter of law, the statements of Deangelo
Carroll ought not to even be in that tape. And the reason the courts allow it to
remain in the tape is because they say that the responses that are made in that
instance by Mr. Hidalgo Ill and Anabel Espindola adopt as admissions the
statements of Mr. Carroll, which means that they are admitted for substantive
use.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. DIGIACOMO: Well, | -- they're not all adopt admissions. They give
context to these words of the defendants. Merely there is no response. When
Deangelo Carroll says what are you worried about Little Lou, you had nothing to
do with it, he doesn’t say, you're right, | had nothing to do with it. There is no
adoption of that.

MR. GENTILE: His silence is that adopted admission. He doesn’t
correct him.

MR. DIGIACOMO: He -- he goes on to talk about killing the witnesses. If
they are asserting --

THE COURT: Well, | think, though, actually you got -- | may be
mishearing Mr. DiGiacomo, but it sounds kind of like you're saying the same
things. You think the tape should come in for the substance of the statement,
and then he's saying, well, if they want this one statement, you want the
substance of the other statements coming in.

MR. DIGIACOMO: Right.

MR. GENTILE: No.

MR. DIGIACOMQO: Well, what I'm saying is if the substance of that

JRP TRANSCRIBING
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statement comes in, it's offered for the truth of the matter and --

THE COURT: Then all the statements should be offered for the truth of
the matter.

MR. GENTILE: Which is why [ object to it coming in at all as to Mr. Jr.

MR. DIGIACOMO: No, | don’t necessarily think that.

MR. GENTILE: | agree with you. We're all in the same agreement, but
I'm saying that it can’t come in as to Junior at all for that very reason.

MR. DIGIACOMO: Under 51.069, we would be able to -- to impeach that
particular statement. There is a reasonable explanation that Deangelo Carroll
gave prior to ever making that statement.

MR. ADAMS: That's never been provided to us.

MR. DIGIACOMOQ: That’s not true.

MR. ADAMS: Never --

MR. DIGIACOMO: It's in -- that’s in his 128-page statement. There's a
very reasonable expianation for what the meaning of that statement is --

MR. ADAMS: What is it?

MR. DIGIACOMO: -- and if the Court is going to -- | don’t necessarily
have to give you my opening. What I'm saying is --

MR. ADAMS: Well, no, but he would like -- can you help him out? Can
you tell him where it is in the 120-page statement so Mr. Adams --

MR. GENTILE: | don't have any written statement --

MS. ARMENI: No.

MR. GENTILE: -- from Angelo -- from him. | have a transcript of a
videotape.

MR. DIGIACOMO: Yeah, the transcript.

JRP TRANSCRIBING
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1 THE COURT: He’s talking about page --

e MR. DIGIACOMO: In the video -- in the video Deangelo Carroll gives an
3 || explanation as to a discussion that he had with Mr. H, and that discussion

4 || explains the statement that Deangelo Carroll made on -- on -- on the wire.

5 THE COURT: You know what, maybe there is an easier way to address

6 || this. And the easier way, at least for me, would be if you tell us what you would
7 || like to say in your opening statement and then rather than dealing in hypothetical
8 [land conjecture, if you just tell us what it is you would like to say, then both sides
9 1l of the defense or -- can say what they find objectionable and | can rule in a more
10 11 concrete way than trying to -- trying to guess at what maybe you're going to do.
1 MR. DIGIACOMO: But --
12 THE COURT: And | know you don’t want to reveal your opening
13 || statement, but to the extent that we can avoid a lengthy conference at the bench
14 1land having you have to flip through your PowerPoint, let’s just do it this way.
15 MR. DIGIACOMO: No, and | wasn't going to actually -- because | think
16 (|there’'s going to be certain legal rulings that the Court’s going to have to make.
17 11 I'm not asking you to make those legal rulings.
18 What I'll say is if the position is it's coming in as substantive, | am
19 || going to tell the jury when you -- when you hear this or if -- they may even hear it
20 || during their opening, ladies and gentlemen, you will hear testimony that is going
21 || to explain that this does not mean that Little Lou wasn't involved in the
22 |lconspiracy. But | can’'t make that statement if it's not offered for the truth of the
23 | matter asserted.
24 If it's -- if it's -- | can only make that statement if it -- if it's coming in

25 ||as substantive evidence. | don’t even need to discuss what the explanation is,
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but | have a right to say to the jury before they're -- they're told in the opening,
hey, Deangelo Carroll said he didn’t do it, then | have a right in my opening to
say to them, well, yes, but you're going to understand what the meaning of that is
at the end of this case, and that meaning is not what is going to be ascribed to it
or what you would naturally think he was saying in that statement. And that’s all |
want to be able to say.

But | felt like it would be inappropriate for me to say that if it's not
being offered for the truth of the matter asserted. And so | just wanted to know
what the position of the defense is. Are they going to offer that for the truth of the
matter asserted, and if they are, then I'm -- then I'm -- | can’t offer it for the truth
of the matter asserted, but if they are | have a right to comment on it.

MR. GENTILE: Okay. Make it straight. As to Junior, we're not offering it
at all. We're opposing it. If we get into our case in chief and we use the
videotape that he’s talking about, we're using it as a prior inconsistent statement.

THE COURT: So just for impeachment?

MR. GENTILE: That's certainly our attitude.

THE COURT: So now it's clear, Mr. DiGiacomo?

MR. DIGIACOMO: | -- my problem has never been with Mr. H.

THE COURT: It's with --

MR. DIGIACOMO: It's with Louis Hidalgo lll. If they're going to attempt
to argue to the jury that Mr. Carroll’s statement means his client didn't do it, |
want to be able to comment on that fact during my opening.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. GENTILE: I'm sure that’s what they're going to do.

MR. DIGIACOMO: That's -- that's -- that's why I'm saying it. As long as
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there’s an indication that that's what’s going to happen, then | feel comfortable
making the statement I'm going to make to the jury.

THE COURT: And Mr. Gentile --

MR. GENTILE: But that doesn’t mean --

THE COURT: -- doesn't really care because that doesn't go to his client

anyway.

MR. GENTILE: No, but it doesn't mean that the -- the videotape when it
does come in is used for substantive purposes. The State can never use that
tape for substantive purposes.

MR. ADAMS: And | don't understand how he can explain away
something from a videotape when the videotape is not admitted and we don’t
know if it’'s going to be admitted.

MR. DIGIACOMO: I'm not going to say what's on there or how it is the
jury is going to know. | just want to have the right to comment that you heard that
statement and that statement is not going to mean at the end of this case that
Little Lou didn’t do it or that Deangelo Carroll meant that Little Lou didn’t do it.

MR. GENTILE: He can comment on it. He can comment on anything.
The question is is he going to be able to get the evidence in later for that
purpose?

THE COURT: Well, except it would be inappropriate for him to comment
on evidence that he knows isn’t going to be admitted, number one. And number
two, Mr. DiGiacomo doesn’t want to run the risk of commenting on evidence and
then having the jury sit there and say, well, wait a minute, he talked about this,
where was that, we didn’t hear anything about it.

MR. ADAMS: What we would like to do, Judge, is to address the issue
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after their opening statement.

THE COURT: No.

MR. DIGIACOMO: Well, my -- the issue is what | say.

MR. ADAMS: Because the sequencing of the order is they have to make
their argument and then we make ours. Alternatively, if the Court is not inclined
to do it that way --

THE COURT: I'm not.

MR. ADAMS: -- we'd like to think about it overnight and respond in an
educated fashion tomorrow.

THE COURT: Allright. And, Mr. DiGiacomo, this hour that you need --

MR. DIGIACOMOQO: Relates to the transcript --

THE COURT: --is that any --

MR. DIGIACOMOQ: -- not to that.

THE COURT: Okay. Now, there are other people in the DA’s office that
are actually physically going to be able to do this work? So if | give you a ruling
at 9:30 somebody else can -- can do the work, it's not an hour of your time?

MR. DIGIACOMO: More like a lunch -- | need a lunch break.

THE COURT: Okay. You'll get a lunch break.

MR. DIGIACOMO: If the ruling is -- if the ruling is before the lunch break,
during the lunch break | can make whatever corrections.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DIGIACOMQO: But essentially it relates to the transcript. | need to
know if you're going to let us use the transcript, one. And if -- if you're not --

THE COURT: So that's the second issue is the transcript? You know, |

was rethinking this issue, and | don’t remember. | mean, it was so long ago.
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There’'s been so many things in this case. But since there’s a difference in the
transcript, and we’re fighting over the transcript, and | know it can help the jury
listening to the tape, but maybe it would be better just to play the tape without
anybody's transcript --

MR. GENTILE: I'm -- I'm all -- I'm down with that.

THE COURT: -- and letting the jury listen and see what they --

MR. DIGIACOMO: If that's the Court’s ruling, we're going to play it 100
times and we'll be here for three weeks because you can't --

MR. GENTILE: That's cumulative. You can't do that.

MR. DIGIACOMO: -- you -- you have to listen to this tape lots and lots of
times and you can’t expect this jury to comprehensively understand the wording
on there. We have a witness who is going to authenticate the transcripts that we
provided to the defense. If the Court’s ruling, and as ! recall, this is a
demonstrative piece of evidence. It's not like it's a physical piece of evidence.,

THE COURT: No, it's not. And last time | said, okay, use both
transcripts, but --

MR. DIGIACOMQO: And if the Court’s ruling is that you won’t allow that
section to be played in front of the jury, | need to know that. | don’t see how it
is -- | mean, what | guess I'll do is I'll bring in a blank board and ask Anabel to
write in on a biank board, okay, what exactly did you hear at this portion of the
transcript? | mean, ultimately, at the end of the day, | don't understand what the
problem is. It's the -- the evidence has been turned over to them forever,

MR. ADAMS: Anabel can testify to what she heard in the room. She
can't -- | don't think she’s being offered as an authenticator of the transcript.

THE COURT: Well, except if she remembers the testimony and listened

JRP TRANSCRIBING
702.635.0301
-234- PA0580

HID PAO0512




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

to it and says, yeah, the -- or the conversation and says, yeah, that's what he
said.

MR. ADAMS: We sure would like some notes of that debriefing session,
Your Honor, because that is critical to us and we’re entitled to know how she was
prepped, how she was prompted to come up and listen to this stuff and fill in the
gaps that are being filled in after the audibility hearing.

THE COURT: Okay. And that was with the district attorneys; right? Not
with the police, not when she was in custody?

MR. DIGIACOMO: That's correct.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DIGIACOMO: And they're certainly not entitied to any notes should
they exist.

THE COURT: So that's subsequent to the negotiation and all of that; is
that right?

MR. DIGIACOMO: Correct.

THE COURT: Okay. And when just did -- did this meeting occur where
she listened to the tape and the -- looked at the transcript and all that stuff?

MR. DIGIACOMO: What day is -- it was Monday because we were dark
Monday.

THE COURT: Okay. And where did it occur?

MR. DIGIACOMO: What?

THE COURT: Where?

MR. DIGIACOMO: In this building.

THE COURT: In the DA’s office?

MR. DIGIACOMOQO: Well, it was brought -- no, it's not technically in the
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DA’s office, but it's a room in the regional justice center for in-custody interviews.

THE COURT: Okay. And who was there?

MR. DIGIACOMO: Myself, Mr. Pesci, and the transporting investigators,
and | believe Mr. Oram for part of the time was present.

THE COURT: QOkay. And that would -- Would that be Mr. Faulkner?
Was he there?

MR. DIGIACOMO: Mr. Faulkner and --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DIGIACOMO: -- one of the transporting, and Mr. Doherty, | believe,
was the other transporting individual.

MR. ADAMS: We'd like to see some notes about how she was prompted
on this part of the tape. If she’s going to say this is the creation, this is how they
came --

THE COURT: Well, first of all, those wouldn't be the investigator's notes
because that would be the DA’s preparing for her testimony, which if there are
notes, that would be the lawyers’ notes, number one. Because at this point in
time, the DA investigators are just, I'm assuming, transport. They have to have
her -- she’s in custody, they bring her and what not. They’re not really
investigating at this point if the lawyers are the ones that are doing it, number
one.

Number two, the reason | asked that was because it's not something
from previous when she initially met with Metro and had the debriefing and all of
that stuff. And you're certainly free to question her about it.

MR. ADAMS: But here’s my concern, Judge. If they play the tape and

she has the transcript and no changes are made and then they say, well, listen to

JRP TRANSCRIBING
702.635.0301
-236- PA0582

HID PA00514




10

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

this part again and they prompt her to a special section and talk to her about that,
that's Brady material. That if she did not identify this the first time that process is
Brady material. It's all fertile ground for cross-examination. | think we're entitled

to know ail about what happened.

MR. DIGIACOMO: He’s free to ask her.

MR. ADAMS: In advance of trial, in preparation of trial.

MR. GENTILE: You know, separate and apart from that whole issue it
seems to me that Anabel can testify -- excuse me, Ms. Espindola can testify to
anything that she thinks she hears on that tape. Nobody has a quarrel with that.
But to let her authenticate a transcript which isn’t even evidence in the first place,
it's nothing more than her opinion at that point.

So if she can testify as a percipient witness that when we were there
this is what was said and the jury then listens to the tape and the jury decides
whether that's what they hear on it or not. | have no quarrel with that. As a
matter of fact, nobody could have a quarrel with that. But it's this -- it's the use of
the transcript itself that is the problem.

THE COURT: The second transcript.

MR. GENTILE: Right.

MR. ADAMS: The second transcript.

MR. DIGIACOMQO: Well, there's a problem with the first transcript.
Who's going to authenticate the first transcript? Who’s going to authenticate their
transcript? Because my understanding is that Anabel was part of the creation of
that --

MR. GENTILE: You don't need --

MR. DIGIACOMO: -- particular transcript.
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MR. GENTILE: --to authenticate a transcript. Okay?

MR. DIGIACOMO: Well, then what's the problem?

MR. GENTILE: You don't need to authenticate --

MR. PESCI: The same --

MR. GENTILE: -- a transcript.

MR. PESCI: -- arguments can be made for the defense --

THE COURT: Right. | mean --

MR. PESCI: -- because Ms. -- Ms, --

THE COURT: --if -- if we are just going to do it, if nobody is -- | mean,
typically, you know, the detective will say, yeah, | listened to the transcript and
this accurately is what the conversation was and | followed along with the tape
and blah, blah, blah.

MR. PESCI: Right.

THE COURT: If we're not going to do that, if we're going to say, ladies
and gentlemen, the tape is difficult to hear or you're going to be the judge of
what's on the tape, but maybe to assist you two transcripts have -- there is
dispute over what’s on the tape, but to maybe assist you, two transcripts have
been prepared. One has been prepared by the State, one has been prepared by
the defense, we’re going to pass out the first transcript, we’d like you to listen,
and --

MR. GENTILE: Well, then | think we should be entitled at least to have it
play the second time with the other one.

THE COURT: And then contemporaneous.

MR. GENTILE: Yeah.

THE COURT: Then -- and then -- and then say, okay, now here’s the
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defense’s version. Ladies and gentlemen, you're not going to have these
transcripts with you in the back so you have to -- they’re not evidence, so you
have to listen to this testimony as carefully as you would to any other testimony
because it's -- you'll have the tape to play, but you won'’t have the transcript, so
please listen carefully to the tape as it’s played, this is just to assist you, no one
is saying that this is the correct transcript or an incorrect transcript and we want
you to follow along and it's your collective hearing that controls here. And then
play the State’s version, play the defense’s version, and move on from there.

MR. ADAMS: The State’s first original version that was ruled upon by the
court.

MR. DIGIACOMO: You didn't rule upon it. You just -- we didn’'t even get
that far. Look back at the transcript. You said the State can play theirs, the
defense can play theirs. The suggestion that somehow that a transcript that is
more accurate or is -- has more information filled into it, somehow that suddenly
makes a difference. They still have the same tape.

We've been here for three days on jury selection. They haven't told
you how they're prejudiced by the fact that there's additional words on the
transcript at all. It's -- if this jury doesn’t hear what's on that transcript, it's very
bad for us. Right?

| don’t understand what the prejudice to the defense is as to a
demonstrative piece of evidence. There’'s other demonstrative pieces of
evidence that I'm sure is being created or will be brought tomorrow. There’s, you
know, aerial maps.

THE COURT: Right. Whatever.

MR. DIGIACOMO: These are all demonstrative kind of things. | don't
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understand what the argument from the defense is that they were --

MR. PESCI: Plus the creation of the defense’s --

MR. DIGIACOMOQO: -- entitled to it.

MR. PESCI: -- version of it was done with the same witness. They will
have the opportunity, because she’s the State’s witness now, to cross-examine
that particular witness. And it's not to authenticate, it's because that was the
person in the room. She was in there. She heard it all.

THE COURT: No, | know. She can say this is what was said or this is
what | remember or --

MR. PESCI: She was in the process with --

THE COURT: No, | get it.

MR. PESCI: -- defense counsel making their version.

MR. ADAMS: Judge, there was a joint defense agreement that Ms.
Espindola had entered into with Louis Hidalgo Il that apparently has been
violated and | think we're going to need some sort of hearing on the extent of -- of
the violation and what it means. It's become clear now, based on their
representation that she has violated the joint defense agreement that was
effectuated between counsel for Mr. Hidalgo Il and for Ms. Espindola.

MR. DIGIACOMO: And the courts have all said they’re completely
unenforceable, Judge. Ms. Espindola does not have some duty to an
unenforceable document.

MR. GENTILE: Actually, the courts haven't said that, but --

MR. DIGIACOMO: What?

MR. GENTILE: | did a paper on that about six months ago. The courts

haven't said that. There’s a bunch of Federal cases.
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THE COURT: What did the courts say?

MR. GENTILE: They've reversed a couple of convictions on it. ['ll bring
them to you tomorrow if | can find it.

THE COURT: Allright. I mean, just -- if nobody is authenticating the
transcript and it's this is one version, here is another version, you know, | think
the fact that the other version may be better --

MR. GENTILE: Well --

THE COURT: -- or more complete --

Yes?

MR. GENTILE: | don’t -- nobody needs to authenticate a transcript. |
think we’re all in agreement with that.

THE COURT: Right. We're just going to pass them out.

MR. GENTILE: The transcript is nothing more than the State’s opinion
as to what’s on the tape.

THE COURT: As to what's on the tape and then --

MR. GENTILE: The best evidence of what's on the tape is the --

THE COURT: Is the tape.

MR. GENTILE: --tape. The -- the additional evidence of what was said
comes from the witness’s mouth. This is what | said, okay, or this is what |
heard.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. GENTILE: But to get into authenticating a transcript which has --

THE COURT: There’s not going --

MR. GENTILE: -- no need to be authenticated --

THE COURT: There’s not -- nobody is going to authenticate the
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1 {{transcript. The only way the transcript will be used is just to say, you know, this
2 ||may assist you, the Court is not saying this is an accurate transcript, this is the
3 )i State's version of the transcript. The defense contests that there are parts that
4 |l are not accurate and has prepared its own. It's for you folks to judge what you
5 || hear on the tape. You won't have the transcripts in the back. You need to listen

6 || carefully and play the tape, and collectively decide as a jury what’s on the tape. |

7 || mean --
8 Yes?
9 MR. ADAMS: Well, which transcript are you now making reference to

10 [ because the -- that makes a difference.

LA THE COURT: You know what, can | do this. | don’t have the second

12 {|transcript. Would you give me the -- Mr. DiGiacomo, this is your assignment.

13 MR. ARRASCADA: Judge --

14 THE COURT: The first transcript and the second transcript and highlight
15 ||what's new on the second transcript that's different from the first transcript so |

16 || can see what we’re talking about here.

17 MR. ARRASCADA: Judge, | think you'll find it's one gap has been filled.
18 MR. GENTILE: No, | -- | haven’t checked them side by side either.

19 MR. DIGIACOMO: There’s a word here, a word there, and --

20 THE COURT: Can you do that for me and just highlight on the second

21 ||transcript what the new words are so | can have a more concrete idea of what

22 || we’re dealing with and whether | think the late notice is prejudicial to the defense
23 |lor not? Because it's sort of hard to decide it uniess | really see.

24 You know, if we're talking about pages and pages of new, you know,

25 (|inculpatory material, then that might be different than if we're talking about a
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word here and there or a phrase here and there that previously was unintelligible.
So I'd like to be able to look at that before | make a decision.

MR. GENTILE: Well, | have -- okay. That’s fine.

THE COURT: What?

MR. GENTILE: Nothing.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. ARRASCADA: Judge, will we be able to argue this more tomorrow?

THE COURT: You won't be able to argue it more tomorrow at 9:00 a.m.
because | want to start right at 9:00 a.m. But at some point you'll be able to
argue it more fully.

MR. ARRASCADA: Thank you.

MR. ADAMS: Thank you. Because that -- | think that makes a difference
for both of our entities.

MR. DIGIACOMOQ: And one -- one last question. If your ultimate
decision -- so long as your ultimate decision is no transcripts, then | -- if you're
going to say it could be either one of the two transcripts, is that -- if that's where
you're leaning then [ just need to know that tonight because I'll -- I'll have the
second transcript ready for courtroom presentation that way it won't delay
anything.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DIGIACOMOQO: But if you say no, then I'll probably need about an
hour.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DIGIACOMO: Okay.

THE COURT: Well, we’ll have a lunch break and whether you get to eat
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lunch or you're working on your computer will remain to be seen.
(Proceedings adjourned at 5:55 p.m.)
-000-

ATTEST: | hereby certify that | have truly and correctly transcribed the

audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled case to the best of my ability.
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Anyone else includes members of your family and your friends. You may tell
them that you've been selected to serve as a juror in a criminal case, but please
don't tell them anything else like who the lawyers are or what courtroom it's in or
anything else. Okay?

Additionally, do not read, watch, or listen to any reports or
commentaries on any subject or person relating to this case. Don't do any
independent research on any subject connected with the trial. Don't visit the
locations at issue. And please don't form or express an opinion on the case.

I’'m going to have you exit the courtroom with Officer Wooten. He’'ll
tell you where to meet up Monday morning at 9:00 a.m. And then, as | said
before, we'll begin the trial. So have a good weekend and we'll see you back
here Monday.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: Thank you, Judge.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Thank you.

(Jurors recessed at 4.56 p.m.)

THE COURT: Allright. | guess we have to resolve the issue of the
transcripts.

MR. DIGIACOMO: Yes, and then they were supposed to answer the
question as to whether or not they want Deangelo Carroll's one line in there for
the truth of the matter asserted or -- or not because --

THE COURT: | think they -- they said yesterday they did not.

MR. DIGIACOMO: No, they said they wanted to think about it overnight.

THE COURT: Oh, I'm sorry. Okay.

And the outcome is?

MR. ADAMS: Well, are you ruling on the transcript issue now, Your
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Honor?
THE COURT: Well, let's do the other one first.
MR. ADAMS: Okay.
THE COURT: Who's going to address that?
MR. ARRASCADA: | will.
THE COURT: All right.
MR. ARRASCADA: Court's indulgence.
Your Honor, we believe it's admissible for the truth of the matter.
THE COURT: All right. And so, Mr. DiGiacomo, the State's position is?
MR. DIGIACOMO: Well, my position is that | can't offer it for that
purpose and they can’t argue it for that purpose. However, based upon the fact
that they are going to assert in their opening that that is a statement which is
offered for the -- which may be considered for the truth of the matter asserted, |
am going to explain to the jury that | think that there will be an explanation during
the course of the trial. And if ultimately the Court rules that that's not offered for
the truth of the matter asserted, at least | had a good faith basis to make a
statement.
THE COURT: Aliright. That's fine.
MR. GENTILE: That's fair.
THE COURT: That's fair.
Okay. So we're all kind of on the same page on that one.
Direct my attention, please, to the portion of the transcript that has
the basically contested sentence.
MR. DIGIACOMO: | believe it's page 15. | can count it out right now

because | forgot to number these last night. One, two, three, four, five, six,
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seven, eight, nine, ten -- it's actually page 11. And | think when you say
contested, you need to probably pull up theirs as well because | know | gave you
my copy of theirs.

THE COURT: Well, I'm talking about the one that you just had and --

MR. DIGIACOMOQ: | -- | know, but part of what we changed is from
theirs.

THE COURT: Okay. So -- anditis?

MR. DIGIACOMO: Little Lou line -- it reads now: Next time you do
something stupid like that, | told you you should’ve taken care of TJ, but, space,
all the fuckin’ time, space, KC, space, priors, how do know this guy?

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DIGIACOMO: If you see the part that is lined out, it used to read:
Doing something stupid like that, | told you to take care of this, space, all the
fuckin’ time, KC priors, how do you know this guy?

And the defense’s version read: space, you do something stupid
like that, | told you you should have taken care of this, space, all the fuckin’ time.

And then | don't remember what happens afterwards. But the -- that
is the extent of the argument --

THE COURT: | don't --

MR. DIGIACOMO: -- that we’re having.

THE COURT: I'm sorry. | don't see that the import or the impact of this
s really markedly different between the State's new version and the old version.
| mean, it's obvious they're talking about the same thing. | don’t know what the
big -- other than this or TJ, | don’t really know what the big -- the big change is, |

mean, to make it more prejudicial or more probative or anything else. | mean, |
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think the content -- the content is essentially the same whichever version you

look at.

MR. DIGIACOMO:; That's -- that’s kind of what | thought too, but --
THE COURT: That's how | read it. | mean, I'm -- | guess the defense

disagrees with that, but whether it's you do something stupid like -- | mean, it you

look through the whole content, it's the -- it's the -- it's not like they're -- looks like

they're talking about anything different other than TJ and this. But | still think if

you go through the content, it's not that -- | mean, it's obvious they’re talking

about the same thing. |just don’t get what's so different, in my view,

MR. ARRASCADA: Your Honor, it's the reference. You can listen to that

tape 100 times and come to 100 different conclusions regarding taking care of

this TJ, but you cannot -- Judge, you've listened to the tapes. You can’t hear.

And now they're going to be overly suggestive to this jury regarding

TJ Hadland, that our client is referring to him by name in this statement. You

don't see it as being any different, so what's the harm of just giving the one that

everyone agreed on and not the contested one? And they -- obviously they're

going to argue it, Judge.

MR

MR.
MR.
MR.
MR.
MR.
MR.
MR.

. PESCI: Judge, that’s just --
ADAMS: But if you're going --

ARRASCADA: Judge, if I --
PESCI: We agreed to have --
ARRASCADA: You know --
PESCI: -- two separate --
ARRASCADA: -- please instruct --
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MR. PESCI: -- ones.

MR. ARRASCADA: -- the prosecutor --

THE COURT: Let -- let --

MR. ARRASCADA: --notto --

THE COURT: Mr. Pesci --

MR. ARRASCADA: --interrupt.

THE CCURT: --first of all, don't double team. And second of all, Mr.
Arrascada is speaking and wait until he's done speaking and then you can
speak. Well, whoever wants to take this one.

MR. ARRASCADA: | believe Mr. DiGiacomo had the lead on this, and
the Court just ruled no double teaming.

Your Honor, the point being now in the 11" hour they have come up
with this new miraculous transcript that has the name TJ within it. And it's
prejudicial to our client because it gets put in front of the jury that this is the
context and it's overly suggestive. And the prior two transcripts were both blank
in that area.

MR. DIGIACOMO: Judge, if | may be heard now in response to that,
there was never an agreement as to the content of the transcript. They filed an
audibility hearing in which they said, look, Judge, either you go through and you
write a transcript, or we wiil accept that the State can offer one version and we’ll
offer another.

What they are essentially now claiming is there is some sort of
discovery violation related to a demonstrative piece of evidence. That's what the
argument is --

THE COURT: Yeah, thatis what --
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MR. DIGIACOMO: -- before the Court.

THE COURT: --in my view, what it is.

MR. DIGIACOMO: And there -- there can’t be a discovery issue related
to the original tape. One, two, they know two weeks ago | specifically said that
says TJ in that exact spot when they were in my office. | made that
representation.

THE COURT: Well, that was not -- Mr. Gentile wasn't involved in that.

MR. DIGIACOMO: No, Mr. Gentile wasn’t. But actually, | think that
statement is somewhat exculpatory to Mr. H when | think all of the -- the things
play out. In fact, there’s another line that Mr. Gentile this morning said, ch,
thanks for giving me that, | didn’t hear that on there either. We didn’t make stuff
in there to help cur case. We added other stuff that we could find, some of which
was in their transcript itself.

Now they're saying one word, this versus TJ. That's it. That's what
they're arguing to the Court. And to suggest that we have to stick with a word
that we don't believe is correct in our transcript, they're free to put this in their
transcript and they're free to argue let’s do it again, it's this, and we're free to
argue, listen again, he says TJ.

What's the difference? What possible prejudice could they have
that -- that they would’'ve done differently with their case had they known that that
word was TJ versus this? What prejudice?

We've been here now five days for jury selection -- or four days for
jury selection. What's changed in the entire -- what couldn’t they have done in
preparation of their case? | mean, what possible difference does it make?

MR. GENTILE: May | be heard?
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THE COURT: Uh-huh,

MR. GENTILE: It's really not by beef because --

THE COURT: Right. You don't have a dog in the fight.

MR. GENTILE: | don’t have a dog init. But | was the person who argued
it and -- and we were the ones who filed the --

THE COURT: Right.

MR. GENTILE: -- audibility hearing motion, at the time representing Mr.
Hidalgo Ill. | will tell you that when | saw the transcript that the government
proposed at that time my feeling was that there was nothing in it that would
create a need for you to have to go through and listen to it all and make the
decision.

My feeling was that whether a jury believed the one that existed at
that time or the one that existed that -- that | had or believed neither of them,
which is really what they're supposed to do. They're supposed to believe neither
of them, that it didn’t matter, and, candidly, | wanted the tape played twice
because | thought it was really good for Mr. Hidalgo lll, okay, especially on that
issue.

This does change things, and | will tell you that had this been the
transcript that had been offered at that time, | would’ve forced the Court to at
least make an effort to --

THE COURT: You would've asked --

MR. GENTILE: | would've --

THE COURT: -- the Court.

MR. GENTILE: No, actually, Judge, | think there’s a right to it.

THE COURT: All right.
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MR. GENTILE: Okay?

THE COURT: Here --

MR. GENTILE: But -- but in the end -- in the final analysis --

THE COURT.: If it wasn’t the weekend -- | mean, I'm -- I'm happy to take
the tape and listen to it and then make a finding one way or the other. If | think it
says TdJ or if it says this or | can't tell what the heck it says, my only concern is
then in Mr. DiGiacomo's PowerPoint. | mean, in terms of these other words, |
don’t think anybody really cares if Mr. DiGiacomo uses this new transcript. The
only issue is whether or not it says TJ this or nothing.

MR. GENTILE: And | will tell you on the record that but for --

THE COURT: Is that fair?

MR. GENTILE: That’'s absolutely true --

THE COURT: Mr. DiGiacomo --

MR. GENTILE: -- but for TJ thing.

THE COURT: --if, let's say, Monday morning at 8:00 you were to be
told, you know what, the Court said she didn’t hear TJ, take the TJ out, just leave
a blank there, how long would that take you to revise in your PowerPoint?

MR. DIGIACOMO: TI'll tell you what, for purposes of my PowerPoint --
because | mean certainly I'm entitled to put up on -- on the --

THE COURT: You're --

MR. DIGIACOMO: -- thing with -- with the case not playing saying you
will hear this. For purposes of my PowerPoint that’ll make no difference. And if
you rule right now that for purposes of my opening | don’t play the audibility
portion where -- and -- and the jury have a transcript that says TJ, then we'’re

fine.
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THE COURT: Right. | mean, you can say, obviously, in your
PowerPoint -- I'm sorry, not in your PowerPoint, in your opening you can say
you're going to listen to the tape and hear that he’s talking about TJ, and then the
defense can say that's not what the tape says, you're going --

MR. ARRASCADA: Not only --

THE COURT: --to hear --

MR. ARRASCADA: Not only that's not what the tape says, but that's not
what their transcript in the beginning said.

THE COURT: | know. | getit.

MR. ARRASCADA: And then their transcript --

THE COURT: I mean, | still think -- | still think that they can say what
they think the evidence is going to show. It's up to the jury what the evidence
shows. | mean, | can listen to this over the weekend and make a comparison
and then make a finding one way or the other if it's not going to impact --

MR. DIGIACOMO: I'll take it --

THE COURT: -- the openings.

MR. DIGIACOMO: -- out of my closing, and then that way --

THE COURT: | mean your opening.

MR. DIGIACOMO: -- | mean, it's already late on Friday. We'll get you a
clean copy with good headphones for you listen before it actually comes into
evidence.

THE COURT: So | don't have to do it this weekend?

MR. DIGIACOMO: So you don't have to do it --

THE COURT: QOkay.

MR. DIGIACOMOQC: -- this weekend, one.
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Two, they keep saying that somehow that there's some evidentiary
basis to make an argument as to a transcript. Unless they're going to -- they've
already said they don't want a witness to authenticate it. Unless they're going to
find a witness that originally authenticated or -- or created the transcript, how is it
that they're going to impeach and say, well, this -- the government gave us a
transcript that didn’t have this in it and now they did.

Now, certainly they can -- they can ask -- | guess they can ask
witnesses that question, but they're not allowed to just stand up there and go,
well this is what the government gave us in discovery --

THE COURT: Right.

MR. DIGIACOMO: -- and it doesn’t count.

THE COURT: I mean --

MR. ARRASCADA: Judge, we -- we wouldn’t do that.

THE COURT: Right. You can comment on whatever, | mean, that, you
know, they're going to see two transcripts and the govern -- and the State is
putting in stuff that they're just not going to hear on the tape.

MR. ARRASCADA: Judge, if you're going to let in that transcript, then
their original transcript -- transcript should be --

THE COURT: No, it's one transcript or the other. It's not going to be an
issue about who prepared what transcript and whether they first -- | mean, the
Court’s going to make a determination of what transcript they're entitled to give,
whether it’'s the first, whether it's the second, or it's the second with a slight
redaction of the TJ, which seems to be the big issue.

Then you're going to make a Court exhibit of the first transcript, and

the second transcript will be a Court exhibit as well. But there’s not going to be a
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bunch of arguing and fighting in front of the jury, oh, well, this transcript and that
transcript. For appellate purposes, the transcripts, like | said, are Court’s exhibits
that don't, obviously, go back to the jury.

But, no, we're not going to get into that because there’s no witness
to that. How are you going to put it on? Then you're going to be the witness
then arguing about a discovery violation and you're not a witness. So who's
going to tell about what transcript and who did it? There’s nobody to tell.

MR. ADAMS: Judge, | --

THE COURT: So it's not evidence.

MR. ADAMS: Judge, may | be heard momentarily --

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. ADAMS: -- please. I'm doing the opening statement for Mr. Hidalgo
lll. And Mr. DiGiacomo has referenced that he told us a couple of weeks ago in
a part of a conversation that was off the record, and he asked us to be off the
record on that. And there were other parts of that which | feel bound by the off
the record part so I'm not going to go into those.

| think there is a process where he thought he heard something on
the tape and he thinks now a witness has confirmed that. And | think he will ask
this witness -- | think he'll ask Ms. Espindola about it.

THE COURT: That's okay.

MR. ADAMS: | think we are entitled to taik about the prior transcript
before Ms. Espindola --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. ADAMS:; -- became a --

THE COURT: Here's the deal.
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MR. ADAMS: -- State’s witness.

THE COURT: If Ms. Espindola was not -- here’s my ruling. Okay? Right
or wrong. If Ms. Espindola was not involved in the making of the first transcript,
which she was not, what difference -- how is she going to comment on the first
transcript versus the second transcript?

Now, you can ask her, okay, as part of your agreement to cooperate
in this -- in this case you met with the prosecutors and you listened to the tape,
and you told them what was in the tape, or something like that, and you didn’t do
that until after. She can testify to that, but she can’'t comment on the first
transcript why something --

MR. ADAMS: She would've reviewed the first transcript to come up with
the additional stuff.

THE COURT: Yeah, but she doesn’t know -- you know what, I'm not
going to fight with you. That's my ruling. She doesn’t know why something is in
or not in the first transcript because she wasn’t there and she didn't do it.

She can say | was given the first transcript and I filled in the blanks
or | was given a transcript that was incomplete and | filled in the blanks and | put
TJ in there. But beyond that she doesn't have any personal knowledge of
anything relating to the first transcript, so what the heck is she going to comment
on? | mean, all she can say is what she knows.

And, you know, anything else would be speculation. Well, why is
this, or not this in the transcript? She doesn’t know. She wasn't -- she wasn’t
cooperating at that time. She wasn’t there. How does she know why somebody
put or didn’t put something in a transcript? | mean --

MR. GENTILE: May | address the Court?
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THE COURT: Are you sure you want 10?7

MR. GENTILE: Yes, | do. It seems to me that, and with all due respect
to everybody, we're getting kind of far afield. The transcript is nothing more than
an aid --

THE COURT: An aid.

MR. GENTILE: --for the jury. That's it.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. GENTILE: That's all it is. No witness should be talked to about the
creation of a transcript. All right? Whether they assisted in it or whether they
didn’t assist in it. It doesn’t matter. It's done for the aid to the jury. The jury
should be instructed that it is not to be suggestive. We are not certitying that this
IS ~-

THE COURT: Didn't i say --

MR. GENTILE: -- what's on the tape.

THE COURT: -- that that was the instruction | intended to --

MR. GENTILE: Okay.

THE COURT: Didn't | say at the bench? Did | not say at the bench that
that's what | was going to tell them, that we're --

MR. GENTILE: | don't know it you did --

THE COURT: -- not saying this --

MR. GENTILE: -- or you didn’t.

THE COURT: --is accurate or not accurate? There are two versions,
they’re going to listen and it's their determination, and this may help them, it may
not help them.

MR. GENTILE: And when they go into -- when they go into deliberations
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they’re not going to have the transcript and --

THE COURT: Of course.

MR. GENTILE: -- you know, if they don't hear it, they don’t hear it. But
that’s the reason you have to tell them that the transcript is only there to help
them right now, and it does not -- it's not intended --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GENTILE: -- to be suggestive.

THE COURT: Mr. Gentile, you may not have heard me at the bench the
other day, but | did say that that would be the admonition and that | tell them in
every case that they don't get the transcript. You're not getting the transcript, it's
not an exhibit, it’'s not going back in the jury room with you, it’s just to aid you at
this point in time. And then when we're done we colliect the transcripts and -- and
that’s it.

MR. GENTILE: Right.

THE COURT: So that's part of my standard instruction and this
instruction is going to be a little bit broader because there is a dispute as to
what's in the transcript. I'm going to tell them there's a dispute as to what's in the
transcript, it's up to you. The Court is not making a determination as to the
accuracy of these transcripts. They may help you or not help you.

If anyone wants me to add anything to that general spiel, | will. But
beyond that -- | mean, to me, we're really just fighting over a word.

MR. GENTILE: Well, and -- and the biggest problem with that is that
because the transcript isn't in evidence, you -- you really can’t comment, no
lawyer can comment on the accuracy of the transcript. It's just not -- essentially

it's a hearsay document. And it's a -- and it's a fugitive document because it's
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not an exhibit.
MR. DIGIACOMO: Mr. Gentile and | are somewhat on the same page.
MS. ARMENI: Twice.
MR. DIGIACOMO: In one day.
THE COURT: All right then. | think we're dissecting this dead horse.
MR. DIGIACOMO: See you, guys.
MS. ARMENI: Have a good weekend.
(Proceedings adjourned at 5:13 p.m.)
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